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T0 THE PUBLIC.

THE principal objeét of the following publica-
tion is a defire to correét the (trange milrepre-
fentations of the evidence given, and the proceed-
ings of the Court, at the trial here ftated, which
have bean induftrioufly circulated particuiarly in
the country part of the State, Whatever may be
our fentiments in regard to the merits of the Cale,
or the interefts of the refpective parties, we have
uniformly been anxious that this work fhould be
eonducted with a ftrit regard to candour and cor-
rectnefs. Ic 1s fubmitted to the public, under a
perfect recolleétion of the mulcitude of witnefles
who are knowing to the truth, or the falfehood, of
the faéts here ftated ; and who will compare the re-
prefentations Lere made with the tranfactions they
faw and heard at the trial. 1t is alio fubmitted,
under a full confcioulnefs, that party prejudices and
interefted inducements will probably feek out occa-
fions for difapprobation and contradiétion; Howe.
ver,as we believe that imparuality has been the
conftant guide throughout the whole compilation,
it thall fliil govern, on our Part, i applying the pro-
per corrections, when fuch fhall be found neceffary.
If in the hitory of this long and intricate trial,
eonduéted under peculiar circumfitances of hurry and
inconveniency, fome errors have unwarnly efcaped
the Compiler (or us) aad fhall be pointed out, they
fhall be candidly and eordially acknowledged and
cormeCled.

In ftating the teftimony given at the trial, we be-
heve ftrict precilion has been obferved, in giving
t0 both the parties alike their full weight ; and the

words
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HIS was an A&tion of the Cafe commenced at
the prefent Term bv John Dorrance, Efg.
againft Arthur Fenner, Efqh Governor of the State
of Rhode.l{land, charging the Defendant with hav-
ing, falfelv and malicioufly, flandered and defamed
the good name, fame and reputation of the Plain-
tiff. ‘The Declaration confifted of fixteen counts ;
the firft of which charged the Defendant, that he, at
« Providence, on the firft day of May, A. D. 1801,
then and there having: difcourfe of and concerning
the Plainuff with divers good, faithful and credible
citizens of faid State, and of the United Srates,
talfely and malicioufly, openly and publicly, fpoke,
uttered, pronounced and publifhed, in the prefence
and hearing of divers of the aforefaid good, faithful
and credible cinzens of faid State, and the faidU ni-
ted States, thefe falfe, fergned and fcandalous words
following, of and concerning the Plaintiff, to wic:
John Dorrance (meaning the Plaintiff) has fold to
Doctor Pardon Bowen, for the purpofe of diffection,
the dead body of a certain man, who hung himielf
in Scitvate, in the county of Providence aferefaid,
in the year, 1799 : Which faid dead body had been

teft in the care of the faid John Dorrance (meanin
the Plaintiff ) by fome cf the inhabitaats of faid Sci-
tuate, to be decently buried, accerding to his (mean.
ing the Plaintift’s) dlre&mns That he thefaid
John Dorrance(meaning the Plaintiff) had received
from faid Pardon Bowen a beaver hat, ia payment
for the aforefaid dead body, fold to the faid Pardon
Bowen as aforefaid, by the faid John Dorrance
{meaning the PIamnﬁ“} and that the faid John Der-
rance (meaning the Plaintiff} had the Impud“nc: to
wear the aforefald hat on his (meaning the Plain-
tiff’s) head, while he (meaning the Plaintiff) offici-
ated ‘as Moderator of a Town-Meeting of the town
of Providence aforefaid.” The fecond, third, fourth,

and
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and fifth counts charged the Defendant with {peak.
ing, at other times, words of nearly the fame import,
varied only in the form of expreflion. The fixth,
feventh and eighth counts charged him with having
a difcourfe, at different times, with divers citizens,
previous to the eletion in May, 1800, of and con-
cerning the Plaintiff, and of and concerning his of-
fice of a Juftice of the Court of Common Pleas for
the Couvnty of Providence, and of the execution of
{aid office by the Plaintuff; and in fuch difcourfe
of falfely and wmalicioufly {peaking the aforefaid
words, with an intent to deprive the Plainaff of the
- {aid office, to bring him into Jdifrepuré, contempt

and hatred, among(t the afoiefaid citizens, and t©d
prevent his re-election to the f{aid office, by the
General Aflembly, at their Seflion, in May 1800.,—
The eight Jalt counts charged him with having
falfelv and malicioufly writtea and publifhed, and
caufing to be written and publifhed, cerrain falfe,
malicious and fcandalous libels, 1n the form of paper
writings, containing the fame words of and con-
cerning the Plaintiff, and of and concerning his of-
fice atorefaid, his execution thereof, and his election
thereto, in the fame manner and with the fame intent
as declared in the eighe firl €ounts,

The Declaration, in fetting forth fpecial dama-
ges, ftated, that che Plaincff, by reafon and means
of toe fpeaking and publithing, by the Defendant,
fad words, and of writing and publilhing, and cau-
fing to be written and publithed the faid libels, had
been injured 1n his faid good name, fame and repu-
tion, by him gained and enjoyed among the faid
good, faithful and credibie citizens : That divers
of faid citizens had withdrawn from him their efteem
refpect and confidence : That his {aid eleCtion to
faid othce of Juitice of the Court of Common Pleas
was injured and affefted; and that he, In :heifa?e €=

ection
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tion, loft the good and legal votes of twenty of the
members of faid Generai Aflembly who had good
right to vote therein. The damages were laid at
fiftcen thoufand dollars. To which Declaration,
the Defendant filed the following Pleas.

¢¢ And the faid Arthur Fenner comes into Gourt
and defends the force and injury when, &c. and as
to the fpeaking and publifhing all or any of the
words ; and as to the writing, eor caufing to be
written, or publithing all or any of the faid words or
libels, in all or any of the counts of the Plaintiff’s
Declaration aforefaid, he the faid Arthur. faith, that
be is not thereof, or of any part thereor, guiity, in
manner and form as the Plaiutiff, in bis Declaration
aforefaid, bath alledged and charged againit him ;
ard of chts, &c. By David Howcil, his Attorney.”

¢« And the Deferdant, by leave of the Honorable
Court here, and according to the ftature in this be-
half provided, further picads and fays, as to the
{peaking, uttering and pubhifhing the words men-
tioned and charged againdt the 1aid Defendant, in
the firlt, fecond, third, fourth, fifth, fixth, feventh,
and eighth counts of his aforefaid Declaration, the
Plainuff his Action aforefard thereof acainft him,
ought not to have and maintain ; but from having
and maintaining the fame uugh; to be precluded
2nd barred 5 becaufe he faith, that the {aid dead
bocy in the lalt aforefaid counts of faid Declaration
n enuuned, was the dead body of a ftranger who died
in {aid Sciruate, and was there decently buried, by
ard under the direction, and at the expence of the -
fcreraia ‘I own of Scituate, on the 17tn day of Feb-
- ruary, A. D.1799: ‘[hat faid dead body was

taken vp frem thic aferefaid place of its interment,
anG removed 1o and depalited in a cerrain building,
1o waid fown of Vrovicence, to wit; at faid Proyi.

' denec
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dence, on the 1gth.day of February, A. D. 1705

ghar at faid Providence on the ﬂﬂt_h da}r_qf Feb. A.[3,

1799, & certain agreement and ftipulation was made

‘and entered into, by and between John Harrisy, Gi-
deon Auftin, and Jofeph Knight, Efquires, Gideon
Angell, Samuel Wilbour, jun. and Squire Franklin,

Members of the Town Council and Agents for {aid

'Town of Scituate, on the one part ; Pardon Bowen,
of faid Providence, Phyfician, on another parr; and

John Dorrance, of {aid Frovidence, Efquire, the
. Plaintiff atorefaid, on the lalt part, to the following
fubftance and effect : The faid John Dorrance, the

now Plainnff, then and there agreed to and with the
- other two contralting parties aforefaid, that he wou'd
take the {sid dead body into his carz to be decently
- buried, in faid Providence, under his care and di-
rec¢tion. The iaid Pardon Bowen then and there a-
greed to and with the other contralting parcies a-
- torefaid, that he would procure a {uirable cotha, and
- be at the expence of faid funeral, to pe condusted
under the {uperintendance and direction of the laid

- Joha Dorrance, as aforefaid ; and that he wouid
pay to the faid Jokn Harris, Gideon Aultin aad Jo-
jeph Knight, Efquires, Gideon Angeil, Samuel Wil-
bggr, jun. and Squire Frankiin, Members of the
Town Councii and Agents for faid Town aof scita-
ate, the fum of forty dollars, as a compeniztion for
. the trouble and expence of faid Town of sciuace,
_in the premiies. . And the faid john Harris, Gideon
Aultin and Jofeph Knight, Efquires, Gideon Ta-

- gell, Samuel Wilbour, jun. and Squire Fraakiin,
- Members of the Town Council and Ageats for faid
Town of Scituate, then and there agreed toand wita

the other contracting parties atorefaid, that in conti-
deration of their feveral undertakings aforsfaid, to be
by them faithfully executed and pertormed, and of
the faid fom of forty dollars to them in hand pad
by the {ad Parden Bowen, they, the f2id John Har.
015, Gidcon Aultin and Joleph Knight, Kfyuires,
| : Gideon -
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Gideon Angell, Samuel Wilbour, jun. and Squire
Franklip, Members of the Town Council and A-
gents for faid Town of Scituate, would indemnify
and fave harmlefs the faid Pardon Bowen and a'l o.
thers, of and from all manner of cofts and damages,
which might arife and {all on him or them ; by means
of any profecution thereafter to be bmught againft
himn the faid Pardon Bowen, or any other perion or
perfons, by the faid Town of Scituate or by any ina
habitants thereof, on account of the taking up and
removal of fard dead body from Scituate as afcre-
faid ; and that they the faid Jokn Harris, Gideon
Auftin and Jofeph Kaight, Efquires, Gideon Angell,
Samuel Wilbour, jun. and Squire Franklin, Mem-
beis of the Town Council and Agents for faid
Town of Scituate, would leave the faid dead body
under the care of the Plaintiff, to be decently bu-
ried, under nis care, fuperintendance and direétion,
And the {aid John Harris, Gideon Auftin and Jo-
fcph Knight, Elquires, Gideon Angell, Samuel

anur,_]un and Squire Franklin, then and there
returned to their {everal homes, in faid Scituate, ful
ly trufting and confiding, that the feveral agreemeants
aforefaid of the contracting parties aforefaid would
be carried into effect, in every particular as afpre-
faid, 1o good faith and without any deceit or equivo-
cation in any of faid contratting parties. And the
Defendant further in faét avers, that at faid Provi-
dence, on the twenticth day of February, A. D,
1799, between the hours of 10 and 11, at night, the
{aia cead body,withcut any fhirt or any other.cover=
ing other than it2 own fkinand hair, was put into a
ﬁrmﬂht, rough box made of pine boards, held to-
gether by nails partly dnven snto faid Soards, with
room enough under their heads for the claws of
an hammer o pals and ealily draw them out:—
W hich faid bux and dead body was then and there
put into the ground, cighteen inches below the furs
tace and nor deeper, and covered over wuhdluelﬁ

irts
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dirt. And the Defendant further avers, that within
three hours after the time lat aforefaid, the faid
dead body was taken out of the earth, the faid box
being lefc behind, and was carried and depofited in 2
cerrain building, in faid town of Provideace, and
then and there came to the ufe of the faid Pardon
Bowen, and was by him the faid Pardon Bowen,
then and there, approoriated and converted to his
ufe as a Phyfician or Surgeon, and was then and
there, under his fuperintendance and direction, dif-
fected, the fleth and bones and eatrails feparated,
and the bones framed again to their feveral places
20 exhibit a {keleton or anatomy of faid human bo-
dy. And the Defendant further avers in falt, that
at faid Provideace, after the faid dead body had been
converted to the ufe of the faid Pardon Bowen, in
manner atorefaid, and wichin three weeks thereatrer,
he the faid Pardon contrated with Benjamin Ran-
dall, of iaid Providence, Hatter, for a good Beaver-
hat to be made bv the laid Randall, on the faid
Bawen’s account, and at his the faid Bowen's ex-
pence, and delivered to the now Plaiatff : For which
faid .hat the faid Pardon Bowen then and there paid
and fatisfied the {aid Benjamin Randall.

And the Defendant further in fadt avers, that at
faid Providence, on the third Wednefday of April,
1800, the faid Benjamin Randall delivered faid Bea.
ver.hat to the Plaigtiff, who then and there accept-
ted and received faid hat, and converted the fame
to his ufe ; and that he the Plaiatiff then and there
refuled co give to faid Randall, a receipt therefor, al.
ledging that the tranfaction was of a delicate nature,
~ And the Defendant rurther in fact avers, that at{aid

roviaence, at the faid tume when the faid Pardon

Bowen contracted with faid Randall, for faid har,

or on faid third Wednefday of Aprii, 1800, the

faid Pardon Bowen was not indebted to the Plain-

tiff for any caufe, macter or thing, other than for
law-advice
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Jaw-zdvice given to the faid Pardon Bowen by the
Plaintiff, during the time in which he the Plaintff
held a commiflion, and ated as a Juftice of the
Court of Common Pleas for faid County of Provi-
dence, and was under his oath of office as fuch juf-
tice, and other thaa for the fervices rendered to -
{aid Pardon Bowen, touching and concerning the
21d dead body’s pafling to the ufe of the faid Pardon
Bowen, in manner as afcrefaid ; for the former of
which defcription of lervices, he the Plaintiff always
retuted to receive any pay from him the faid Pardon
Ecwen, to wit ; at {aid Providence. And the De.
fendant avers, that the Plainuff, to wit ; at faid
Providence, rnever paid, or promifed to pay, or was
lizble to pay, to the faid Pardon Bowen, any money
or other valuzble confideration, for {aid Beaver-hat,
uther than as by the one or by the other defcription
of fervices lait z2forefaid. And of all the premifes,
the Plaintiff, at {aid Provideace, on the aforefaid
day when the {aid Pardon contrated with faid Ran-
dall for faid bat, and on the aforefaid day when faid
hat was deliveretl by faid Rardall to the Plainuff,
was well knowing,  Wherefore the Defendant, at
the laid {everul umes when, &c. did fay the faid fe-
veral words againft him che Defendant alledged and
charged in the faid firit, fecond, third, fourth, fifth,
[ix:t, feventb ana eighth counts of the Plaintiff’s
aforciaid Declaration, net malicioufly, but pleafant.
ly, on{y meaning thereby, that the {aid Beaver-hat
was iur ibe Plantiff’s connivance and breach of
truit as aforefaid ¢ Which faid words had been
theretofore reported by others, as it was lawful for
b w do, for the caufe aforefaid ; and this he is
scady to verity,  Wherefore, &c\ |
By David Howell, his Attorney,”
To which Plea in Bar, the Plaintiff replied, in u-
fual {oim, thit the Detendant, at the {everal times
wentivned 1o daid cight frlt counts, of bis swn

wWron g
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wrong, and without any fuch caufe as by the Defen-
dant alledped in faid Plea, fallely and malicioufly,
openly and publicly, fpoke, uttered, prosounced and
publifhed the words fet forth in faid counts; and
thereon tendered an iffue which was joined by the
Defendant. The Plaintiff alfo joined the iffuc of-
fered by the Defendant, denying the whole Decla.
ration, 9

Purfuant to a motion by the Governor’s {Counfel,
and the other party agreeing thereto, the Court an-
ticipated the caule from the order of the Docket,
and affigned it for triai on Wednefday, the thirtieth
day of December, and the ninth day of the Term.
‘The Caule being called, at the opening of the Court
in the morning, the Clerk proceeded to empannel
the Jury ; and the firlt twelve on the lift of drawn
Jurors having been called and feated in their box,
the parties were reminded of their refpeétive chal-
lenges,

The Plaintiff did not feem difpofed to make any
challenge.

The Defendant objected to Nathan Dyer, and of-
fered for caufe, that the Juror was brother to Doc-
tor Benjamin Dyer ; and that Do&or Benjamin
Dyer, at the time of the removal and diffe&tion of
‘the dead body, had certain pupils ftudying with him
who were faid to have been in fone meafure con-
cerned 1n that tranfaction. Mr. Howell, for the
Defendant, obferved that a Juror, in any caule,
ought to fic ““ neat and clean as a fheet of blank pa-
~pers” That it was reafunable to fuppofe that Doc-
tor Dyer muft have been fomewhat 1nterelted or af-
fected by the conduct of his pupils, and was there-
fore himfelf implicated i1n the bulinefs 3 That the
Doctor’s brother, the Juror challenged, muﬁ of pe=
‘ceflicy feel interefted in thé reputation of the Doctor,

: ; and
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and without doubt did entertaina partiality not on=
ly for him, but for 2ll thofe to whom the Dottot
himielf was partial, and of courfe would be parnal
to Judge Dorrance who was fo deeply involved in,
the affair, The Courfel in behalf of the Plaint:ff
obferved, that the name of Doftor Dyver or any
of his pupils was no where mentioned in the record
of the Cafe: That he was in no way, diretly
or indiretly, interefled, implicated or concerned in
the caufe at iffue ; but might have been himlielf, to
every intent and purpole, a legal and competent Ju-
ror in this trial,and it would therefore be an abfurdity
in the extreme for the Court to heariken to fuch fur-
mifes againft the Doétor’s brother, to whom there
could not peflibly be made any legal or mafonable
hbjﬁéﬁﬂﬂt 3 ; ;

The Chief Juftice obferved, that the caufe was of
great importaoce asit concerned the repuration and
feelings of the Chiet Magiftrate of the State« The
trial had become a matter of great public anxiety,
and on that account it became the Court to be vigi=
lant 2nd careful that the fame fthould be.conduéted
properly : He was therefore delirous of having
‘ fuitable men” for Jurors, He faid; it was intimar
ted from the Bar, that the Juror challenged did not
come within anylegal objection laid down in the books
For his part he fhould not ftri€tly confine himielf to
any rigid maxims of Law, any precife principles
~ftated 1n the Books; the common cultoms of this
tountry; or the former ' pratice of this Court; but
* fhould endeavour by every ‘means to. empannel a

Jury i this Caule wholly free from intereft and
prejudice to the parties. The Court, atter fome
private confultation, ordered the Juror ofte

Mr. Howell fuggéfted to the Plaintiff’s Counfel,
that Naaman Alarich, a Juror, was in fome degree
1clated to thie tamily of Comitock’s, to which family

the
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the Governor’s Wife was alfo related ¢ He withed
to know whiether the Plaintiff on that account woald
pbie@ to the Juror, He was anfwered that the Plain-
tiff was difpofed to trult his caufe to a Jury em-
panneled according to the lot of the Law: That
he then knew of no objection to any of the jurars
who were regularly returned to ferve at the prefeng
Term, and (hou'd not chalienge a juror on any ace
count but where law or prattice fhould require;

and that to Mr. Aldrich in particular, he knew of
no i:gm or cultomary objettion, oa account of any
diftane relation(hip that might pofioly ext between
him and the Governcr, My, Aldrich appesred from
the fmall knowlcdge he had of him, to be a gzntle-
man firmly independent in mind, and wholly dilin=-
terefted in the caufe on trial ; and therefore he was
perfectly contented with mm. Mr. Aldrich was now
called on to declare in what degree of relatioalhip
he ftood with the Governor. The relationthip how-
ever appeared to be f{o remote, and obfcure, that
neither he or the Governor were able to trace or ex.
plain it. Judge Paia declared from the bench,
-ghat he believed that the grandmorther aof Mr. Al-
drich was f{ifter to the mother of the Goveraor’s
wife, waich made the Juror and the Governor’s
wilte tqurth coufins.®* Mr, Howeil then obierved,

that although the relationthip did not come withe
in any legai or practical rule of challenge mena
tioned 1n r.he Bocks ; and although the favour of
relationfhip, if any, was on the udc of the Governe
‘or; yet asibe other party feemed fo well conzented
with the Juror, it feemed to betray fome fecret in-
- tereft 1 bun, which was a realunable, if not a legal

__caule of challenge on the Defendant’s ide.  He
- thercupon moved the cuurt that the Jurar be fur; a=
Ghidgs:s 5% i sy The

-I I: proved thl.g juﬂg-n Pain was totally miftaken, for it turned out, that
the mother of the Governor's wile waa 1n no way relaied to the Comtiock {2
m.u;r i but thac her tagher was realiy of that name,
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The Chief Juftice, 1 giving the decifion of the
Court, faid, that he had known Jurors who were re-
Jated to parties, in fome inftances, give their Ver-
di€t againft the party to whom tacy were related.
He had alfo known Verdiéts annulled by the Gene®
ral Affembly by reafon of relationfhip being after
the trials difcovered between the parties and the ju-
vors. He was therefore of opinion with the other
Juftices that Mr. Aldrich fhould go off the Jury,
which accordingly he did. :

James Hammon, another Juror, was called on
by the Defendant’s Couniel to declare whether he
had ever previoufly formed any opinion in this caufe,
or whether he had ever publicly exprefled any fuch
opinion. He anfwercd that he did not perhaps
precifelv underftand what might be deemed by the
queftioners an opinion fermed in the Cafe. He fad,
he knew that the d:fpute which bad originally caul-
ea the commencement ef this action to have been
a Jong time in agitation : T hat it had been continu-
ally a fubject of gencral converfaticn in the town of
Providence in which he belonged, and had natural-
‘v civided the citizens into different asd oppalite

paruies attached reipeclively to each party inthe Cafe
—Tat he was equally 22 acquantance and ‘riend
to both parties in the Cale, and had ever been, as he
concewved was right, defirous that the animeofitics
between them might {ubfide, and thac all their mat-
wers 10 difpute; including the Cafe on trial,fhould be
feutled by an amicabie compromife, without any
further recourfe to the Law, To accomplith which
defirable purpote, he  had frequently joined in the
current converfation upon the fubject, and had feve-
ral times fuggelted to his neighbours the beneficial
conicquences that might relulc from an attempt by
dilintereited perions to bring about fuch a fettie-
ment : That he had never been fuily informed of
‘the whole hiftory of the difpute, nor was he precife-

ly
-






14

Mr. Howell then objected to Charies Low, anag-
ther Juror ; and for grounds of vbjection, suggefted
1o the Court, that Charies Low was brother to the
Wife of Charles Luppite, That Charles Lippite wag
a warm and intimate friend of Judge Dorrance,
and was politically opposed to Governor Fenner,
and had bren heard to {peak in approbation of
the newfpeper-publications which had latelv ap-
peared againft the Goversor.  Mr. Howell also
spggefted, that Col. Jonn Low, father of the Ju=
ror, had, some years fince, been unsuccessful 1n
a ldw-tuit with bis brother, and had attributed his
ll-luccefs to the influerce of “Governor Fenner and
his people.” ' It was therefore, in his 0oplnion, 1ea-
jonable tv fuppofe that the juror mlgh: entertain 3
1ait:m antipathy towards the Governor,

No proots of the ta&s ftated wers hmv:ver nddu'
Efd

The Juror, on being queftioned, declared, that he
had never 10 any manner prejudged the prefent
‘caufe. - That he barboured no perfonal dillike
whatever to Governor Fenner, and had but a very
jmall and imperfect’ perfonal acquaintance with
Judge Darrance, He did not recolleét even to have e«
--veripoken to the-Judge in his life s He further decla-
- red, that he had never betore heard or thought of a-
ny fufpicions his father entertained in regard to any
- 1nfluence of the Governor in the fuir with his bro-
ther; neither did he hold any intereit or concern in
any auachments or antipathies of Charles Lippice
shat might exift towards cither of the parues in this
Cafe. He obferved that he was drawn by lot_and
returned by the Town of Providence, as a Juror w0
ferve generally in the bufinels ot this Term, and he
had acecpted the endertaking with an intent to ac-
quit himicit of the duties thercot, to the belt of hig
avility, acgording to the law ﬂfth: State and the obs<

/ hgautm:s
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lications he owed.to fociety. As rezarded this parti«
cular caufe,he was equally indifferent and equally free
from prejudice, as in any of the other caufes in which
he had ferved, and had no anxiety to it as a Juror,
or to be Exfﬂ‘ptﬂd fromit. The fentiments of bis
heart, as well as the {acred oath he was under, for-
bid him to be folicitous to fit in a caufe where any
intereft or prejudice could pufﬁ:}iv influence his con-
dufl ; and on the other hand, where he was free
from intereft and prejudice, the fame confiderations
forbid him to fbrink from the performance of aduty
which the law required of him, however arduous or
amportant in itfeif,  Such was the litvation in which
he ftood, and as fuch he ftood at ine pleafure and
difpofal of the Court.

The Plaintiff’s Counfel now oblerved, that Mr.
Howell’s objettions to the Juror were of a (ingular
and exrtraordinary nature. Ingenuitv leemed o
have been drivea to the utmoft (tretch of exertion in
fzekiag out laboured pretences and colourable f{ur-
mifes to effect a removal of che Juror. Mr, Low’s
marriage conneltion with Charles Lippitt by no
means made him connelted with Judge Dorrance.
It was not 1n evidence that Charles Lippitc was in
the leaft concerned wirh Judge Dorrance 1a the pro-
- {ecution or event of this fuie ; nor was it éven fug-
gelted thac chey were concesned together in any bui-
nefs or purfuit whatever. Mr. Lappitt beingin no
way related to Governor Fenner ; his name no where
~meanrtioned 1n the cafe ; no mitance of his enmity

towards the Geveruor fhewn ; and having no pofl-
fitle interelt in the fuit, he might himfelt have been,
aganft tie moft rigid fcruuny, fuliy and perfeétly
sompetent to lic asa Juror. Buton the part of Mr,
Low, there was no thadow of impropricty ar excep.
tion cven hinted, either as regarded his fentin.ents,
his charalter or conduct, - His being diltantly rela-
~xd (0 perfons who might be luppoled to entertain a

diflike
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to Governor Fenner’s political tranfaftions, was am
objecticn that wovld equally apply to ever: ‘=
-mily in the County which had anv confid-
erable number of connéctions, If pohrical opin=
ions were to be taken inro conlideration, n
. the canvafling of this Jury, it would certainly be
juft that both partizs fhould be egually 1ndolged
with the fame privilege: lo that cale, both p arties
together would have caufe of rhalte,.gt againit eves
ty Freeman in the Couniy, and mult neceffar lv exg
clude the poflibility of ever being able to enpanne]
a Jury in the cafe. The fame Counfel further ohe
[ﬂ‘h’fd, that out of the thuty drawo Jurcrs rezurna

d to ferve atthe prefent term, only fourteen ou
mained on the ftand, befides thofe aireacdy excuicd
in thistrial ; the others either not having artended
at all, or were excuied by the Court ard returied
home ;~—=That it was an 1mportant right to Mz,
Dorrance to preferve, if poffible, the privilege of a
Jury drawn by lot, according to Law., 1hat was
a mode of trial to which he was anxious to fubmit
his caufe, without regard rto the political fentiments
of the Jurors individually, But if unfubftaacial fur-
miles of the Defendant were thus allowed to prevail
to the exclufion of a pannel ¢f drawn Jurors, it would
be neceflary 10 fopply the deficiency from a wvenire
ti.en 2lready returned by the Sheriffs  That the She-
i, though his character as a gentleman might be

without reproach, was well known to be an inumate
and parucular friend of the Governor, and was par=
sicularly decided and acuve in the Governor’s views
of political matters. He would therefore by no means
ke a fuitable perfon to fummon a wenire, in an ac-
tion agamit his moft intimate friend. A regard to
the delicacy ot the Shenft’s own feelings fhouid pre-
vent a recourie to luch a meafure, while competent
arawn Jurors could be poffibly obtained. Such be-
g the bitwaton of the Snentf, the Plainuff heid an
vaierettan the drawn Jurors, generally @ 1o was an

. - inteiclt
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mtereft which the law gave him of right, and of
which no idle, frivolous, or unreafnnable furmllc or
fugge&mn ought to deprive him.

The Cuurt, after fome pnvatr: confultation, dif-
mlﬂ'cd Mr. Low from the jury.

There was alfo another objetion ftated by the
Defendant againft Mr. Low, fuggefting fomeirregu-
larity in the mode of his being drawn, and in the
certificate of his return by the ann"Cicrk ‘but
that objection the Court declared was uvcrruled and
- not confidered in the grounds of his removal.

- The pannel being thus canvaffed and concluded,
comprebended the following Jurors, viz.—Enos
Mowry, Aretas Sweetland, Chad Sayles, John Re=
mington, Amos Harrindeen, Nathan Walker, Ste-
phen Hopkins, Jofeph Hopkins, James Yerring=
ton, James Arnold, George Burton, and Nathantel
Bailey,

- On proceeding to trial, the Counfel did not
precifely *agree, as to the order of the arguments
which the parties were refpectively to puriue, {n re-
fpect to the opening and claﬁng of the Cafe; and
-the Court were referred to for their decifioa on the

int. On the part of the Flanuff it was fuggefied
that the Defendant, though he had filed a {pecial

Plea to the eight firlt counts, to which the Plamntiff,
in his replication had tendered ao iffue; yet as the
Defeadant had alio tendered ap ilue to the whole
Declaration, he thereby gave the Plainoff a right to
the opening and clofing of che Cafe; wh ch was
agreeable to practice in this Court.  On the other
fide, it was contended, that the general iffue to the
whecie by no means deprived the Defendant of thac
privilege to which he was enutled, oy reafon of his
ipecial plea ;. but, Mr. Howell ot fervmg, that there

were crols actions ~pcndmg between the parties, in
which
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which the order of the pleadings were fimilar, and
whatever might be deemed a privilege 1a this refpect
would be mutual to the parties ; and i1t was there-
fore immaterial which party obtained this point in

. the prefent trizl, Whereupon the Court decided

that the Plaintiff thould have the opening asd clo-
{ing.

Upon this decifion, Mr. Howell immediately
moved for leave for the Defendant to ftrike out the
general iffue from the eight firit counts ; which was
granted, and 2ccordingly done. He then moved
the Court to reverfe ther laft decifion, and grant
the Defendant liberty to. open and clofe the caufe,
1 he order of pleading being thus materially chang-
ed, the iwo iflues being confined, the one to the
eight firft counts, and the other to the eight laft,
the Deterndanc’s Counfel contended, that they were
entitled to the opening aud clofing. Afcer fome
confiderable time was cccapied in argument by
both parties, it was ordered by the Court that the
Lefendant fhould have the opening and clofiog on
the fuft iffue, and the Plamnufl on the laft,

NMr. Robbins, cn the part of the Defendant,
proceeded to open the cafe on the iffue to the {pe-
cial Plea.,  After the declaratior and pleadings
were read, he obierved to the Jury that their acten-
tion, on the prelent iffue, would be wholly contined
to the charges contained in the eight firfk counts of
the Lcclaration, which concer:ed the fpeaking and
publifhing only of the words therein menticned,
e fad, that 1n behalf of the Defendaat, his general
grouncs uf defence would be, firft : That the words
tuppeled to have been fpoken by the*Defendant
vcie, In fubfiance, true, which, in the courfe of the
wiel,would be evinced by the evidence to be produ-
vet, 2dly, ihat the words vere not in them.felves ac-
wenable, a3 wouid be fhewn by aurhorities frem
twe bouks, In

i
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In order to prove the truth of the words, 2 sum-
ber of witneffes were called by the Defendant; the
firt of whom was the Hon. John Harris, one of the
Juodges of the prefent Courr, who defcended from
his feat, and gave his teltimony, in {fubftance, as
follows : '

“ On Saturday the 13th of February, 1799, T of-
ficiated as Coroner, and empasneled a jury of [a-
quelt, on the body of a man who had hanged him-
felf i the town of Scituate. Afrer th: bufinefs of
the Inqueft was finifhed, the body was delivered o
the care of Gideon Auftin, Efq. who 1mmediacely
caufed the fame to be decently buried, atthe expence
of the town. On the Monday fcllowing,! atieaded
a Townrmeeting in faid Scituate, and 1n the couri:
of the day I was informed, that che dead body had
been by fome perlons raken up and carried away to
Providence, After the Town-meeting was diffuiv-
ed, Gideon Auftin, with feveral others, arsived and
informed me and the penple prefent, that the body
. had been carried away in a (leigh; and chat they,
the informants, had tracked the fl-igh on its way to
Providence, aad had followed it into the yard of Dr.,
Dyer. This report [eemed to excite [bme confider=
able agitation 1n the peooie prefear, and che alara
ipread, and affcéted che feelings of che inhabitants
in general. I was requelted, with feveral otners, to
proceed immediately to Providence, in order to de-
tect the perfons who had carried the boldy away.—
Oa the next day we accordingly came to town, and
applied direéily to Gov. Fenner for his advice re-
lative to the mealures proper to be purlued.  Gov-
ernor Fenner was of opinion that we fhould apply
- to fome auchority for advice and affittance 1n purfu-
ing the ubject of our dulinefs ; and partieulariy re-
commended us to Judge Dorrance, who was treii-
dent of the Town-Council, and Judge of the Courc
of Common Pleas. We thercupon, 1 the sven oy

-
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of the fame’ dav applied to Judge Dorrance, and re-
quefted of him a fearch warrant for the purpofe of
recovering the dead body. Judge Dorrance inform-'
ed us, that a fearch warrant could not be legally ex-
ecuted in the night, and advifed ®s to defer the bu-
finefs’till next day. We informed Judge Dorrance
that we fufpefted fome young men, who were ftu-
dving under Dr. Pardon Bewen and Dr. Benjamin
Dyer, to have taken the body for the purpoie of dil+
feftion ; that the body was then in their peficilion,
fﬁ‘{'l‘{’a.t‘d in the ftore of Dr. Dyer ; and that we wifh-
ed to be as expeditious as poffible, left, by delay,
our fearch might be eiuded. Judge Dt {eem=
ed perfccily difpofed to affift us 1o our enquiry, and
after fome further converfation on the fubjeét, ex-
prefled his cpinioa that the whole affar mighte
probably be fatisiactorily adjofted, without refort-
ting to the affiftance of the law. He faid, he was
perfuaded that it Dr. Bowen’s pupils had l:undut‘.t-
ed themfelves improperly on the occafion, it was -
without the Dottor’s knowledge or confent ; and
thar the Doctor would willingly “take meafures that
fhould agan fet every thing right. And for the
purpofe of feme compromife in the caf:, the Judge
advifed us to meet Dr. Bowen, at his, the Judgc’s
houfe, 1n the morning following; and faid that in
the mean ume he woud rerucl’c the Docior to at=
tend, We agieed to this pmpmal : and in the

morning we again returned to the Judge’s houle,
but Dir. Bowen was ot there.  Judge Derrance
informed us that the Doélor covld not then, convens=
1ently attend to the bufinefs; buc thar he nad feen
Lim und converfed with him on the lun_]mj: ; and
the Doltor was very detirous of the maiice’s being
fettded, and wifhed us to wait on him, at his haum,
for that purpole, We accordingly weae to the Doc-
tor’s houle, and found bim ac home ; and atter fome
cunfiderable converfation, we ca.ne to a fettlement
on the fubjeét, which we mutually agreed fhould be
commiiied to writing. # The

.-"'-
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¢ The fubftance of the agreement was, thatDr.
~ Bowen, in behalf of the young men, fhould pay to
us, for the purpofe of defraying the expences of
the town of Scuvate in the premifes, the fum of
Forty Dollars ; that he fhould procure a decent
cothin and habiliments for the corpfe; and, under
the dire€lions of Judge Dorrance, fhould caufe the
fame to be decently buried in the town of Provi-
dence, which Judge Dorrance was to fée done 5 and
we. on our part, engayed to indemnify and fave
harmlefs the Doétarand all other perfons, from all
further trouble, and from, all profecutions that
might be cominenced by the town of Scituate, ar

any of its inhabitants, on accouat of the taking up
of the dead body.” §

[Here the Defendant’s Counfel produced a paper
which the witneis declared to be, according to the
belt ot his recalleétion, a copy of the ageement by
them eatered into, 1n writing, at that time, ]

The Witnefs crofs.examined. .

Queftion by Plaintiff's Counfel.: Was Judge Dor-
rance prelent ac the tune the agreement between you

and Dr. Bowen was made ?
o

- Anfwer. No.

9; Was the whole: ‘agreement, . including every
engagement entered 1nto by each party, committed
to writing, anc figned by you and: the ochér mew
who came with you from Scituate ? -

A Xess

2. Pid Judae -Durrancc-.evcrt:*.ﬁgn that written
agreement § b
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. 4. Henever did to my knowledge,

2. Did you underfland by the terms of the a-
greement, that Judge Dorrance was to /ze the body
buried, and becane refponiible for its being done,
or that he only was ro give diretions for its burial ?

4. Tt was agreed that he fhould only give direca
tions.

9. Did yow, about that time, fee Judge Dor=
rance, after the agreement with Dr. Bowen was
wiade ¢ ;

A. No.

Q. Had you, or thofe with you, any authority
given you by the town of Scituate, aurhorizing you
to procecd in any manaer whatever relative to that
tranfaction.

A. No.

Q. Were you and thole with you, at that time,
mewnbers of the Town-Council of Scituarte ¢

A. No.

9. Did you confider yourfelves as being, in any
mananer, Agents for that town in the buflinels ¢

A. We fuft proceeded on the bufinefs at the re~
queft of certain individuals, and from no other au-
thority ; and we governed ourfelves, throughout
the whole, aceording to our own difcretion and on
our own account, and did not confider ourielves as
being in any manner employed by the town,

2, Did you confider that the town of Scituate
would
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would be refponfible for the engagements you en-
tered into with Dr, Bowen ? |

4. Not otherwife, than that we fuppofed the
town would give therr confent. |

9. By the Deéfendant bimfelf. At the time you
apphed to me, previoully to your going to Judge
Dorrance, did I nct advife, and urgently defire youn
to endeavour to make an amicable fectlement with
Dr. Eowen and the others concerned with him in
that tranfaction ?

The Plaintiff’s Counfe! objected to the admif-
fion of evidence of what the Governor himfelf
might have adviled in thac Cafe, as being imperti-
nent to the iflue on trial. They fuggefted that
fuch queftions were contrary to practice in this
Court ; and in the prefent Cafe could only bede-
figned to give colouring to matters which really ex.
ifted 1n a different view.

Upon thisthe Governor arofe and declared to
the Court, that his principal objelt in this trial was
to have every facr, and every poffible circumftance
brought up to pubdlic view, in order thatthe public
might fairly judge of his conduét, fo far as he had
becn cencerned in the bulizefs of the prefent enqui-
1y. He withed the muldtude of {pettators, who
erouded the galleries and floor of the houfe, would
hearken to this his public declaration, and dircct
their actention to the trial, that they might be fully
informed of the merits of his cavfe. He wifhed
that every public tranfaction of his life might be
proclaimed to the world ; and that every deed,
whether moral or political, public or private, might
be, without referve, fubmitted to the enquiry and
fcrutiny of that public, by whofe judgment ne with-
ed to ttand or to fall. He again looked upon the

fpettaiors,
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fpe&ators, and again implored the attention of all
thofe who were ¢ within the hearing of his voice ;¥
and folemnly fubmirted the caufe to their candour,
their judgment and feelings.

Whereupon the Chief Juftice, after privatelv con.
folting with the Court, faid, It is the cpinien
of the Court that the witnefs tell all he knows.” And
defired the witrels to procged. [e anfwered, that
the Governor did give them fome {uch advice as he
mentioned, :

RQueftion by the Defendant’s Cﬂﬁﬂff! Did y
ever hear the ftorv of Judge Durrance’s felling th:
dead body for a Beaver-hat, reported by any of the
inhabitants of Scituate, or by any other people ?

The Plaintiff’s Counfel now objccted to this quef-
tion being anfwered by “the wiinels ;- and furthér
moved the Court, that the Defendant be not per-
mitted to geinto evidenre to preve ary hearfay re-
port, that mi ght bave been circulated, relative to the
iffue on trial.

The Defendant’s Counfel cnmfﬂd the motion;
and to thew the propriety of permitting {uch evi-
dence, fuggelted, that their cbject was to prove
that Governor Fenner did not himfelf originally fa-
bricate the ftory of which he was charued but
that it had been a marter of current report isd be-
lief, throughout the couniry, long before Governor
Fenner was ever heard to repeat it; which if they
thouid be able to prove, Governor Fenner would 9e
h::tahy excull,atﬂ:l ut the ﬂandtr.

The Plaintiff’'s Counfel cantcndfd that fuch kmd
of evidences was jllegal and improper.  They fug-
gelted that teftimony cancermng fuch vague and
general rumours could anfwer no purpote towards

decidealy
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decidedly convincing the Jury, that Governor Fens
ner might not have been himfelf the original aathor
of fuch rumours and reports. They further con-
‘tended, that fuppefing Governor Fenner fhould be
able to prove that the ftory originated from other
people, if the Plaintiff thould prove that the Gov-
cernor repeated the fame ftory, as being true, and
with an intent to injure the Plainuff, he would be
~no lefs culpable than if he had firk invented the
ftory .himtelf. To eftablith this prineiple, they re-
cited an authority from Efpinafle, N. P. Page 517
Buil. N. P. 10. Where it is faid, that it is no
juftification ot flanderous words that the Defendant
‘heard them from another perfon, if he repeated them ;
forevery one is anfwerable for the flander which he
himfelf propagates of another.” And a Cafe was
there recited of words fpoken in confequence of their
being read from a letter written by amother perfon 3
in which cafe the Defendant was held to be unjuitie
fiable, .

' The Court were finally called on, by each party
to decide whether the evidence fhould be admitted
or not. The Chief Juftice, after fome conlidera-
ble confultation in private, declared, ¢¢ It is 2be
opinion of the Court, that the wistnefs go on, and tell
all be knows.”

The Plamtiff’s Counfel then defired the Court to
give a regular decifion upon the motion beforechem,
They oblerved, that the motion invelved a principle
of the highelt importance; as regarded the rules of
evidence ; and that the dilpofal of the prefeat quef-
tion would create, or eftablifh a precedent,that mult
govern, in the like circumitances, thereafier.

The Defendant’s Counfel infited on the witnels®

proceding in his teftimony, without any furcher in«
teiruption. Bl The
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[ S————

The Plaintiff’s Ccunriel again called for acecifion.

The Court again whifperéd for fcme length of
time, as was {uppoled, upon the fuh]t&. The
Chief Juftice again repeated, It is the cpinion of
the Court, that the wilne/s go on and tell all be
knows.”

The P'aintiff’s Counfel then afked the Court, if
ro formal decifion was to be given on the motion,
To which enquiry the Court made no anfwer.

- The Defendant’s Counfel then repeated their quef-

tion to the Witnels, relative to his hearing the a-
forefaid Report. He anlwered that he had fre-
quently heard the ftory reported in the Town of
Scituate ; but at what times, or by whom in pam-
cular reported, he could not fay. He could remem-
ber in particular that Governor Fenner had told
him the ftory ; and was politive that he never had
heard the ftory, from any perfon, previous to the
month of May, 18co.

The next witnefs for the Defendant was GIDE,
ON AUSTIN, who teftified, in {fubftance, as fol-
lows : * I was appointed to bury the dead man
which I accordingly did, on Saturday, the 13th of
February, 1799, On Monday following, 1 receiva,
ed information that the body had been taken up,
the preceding night, by fome perfons, and carned
away towards Providence. I immediately fet our,
with feveral other perfons, and followed a fleigh-
track from the grave to Providenee, into Dr. Dy,
er’s yard, ‘We went in the firft place to the Attor-
ney-General’s houfe, but he was not at home: We
thenwent to Judge Dorrance’s houfe, and he was
not at home : 'Whereupon we went to the Govern="
or, and communicated t0 him the circumitances of

our
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our bufinefs.  The Governor referred us back to
Judge Dorrance for advice and aflifance; but
Judge Dorrance not being at home, we went to Dr.
Bowen’s houofe, and he was alfo gone from home.
We then; went to the young men whom we fuppofed
to.have taken the bodv, and I charged them prz.
remptorily ‘not to fuffer the body to be diffelted.
Afterward we returned co Scituate, where we arrived
jult as the Town-Meeting was broken up. We
found the.peopls there much irritated aad alarmed
at the trapfaction. 1 wasdelired, with feveral oth-
ers, 1@ teturn to Providence, and make further en-
quiry in the cafe. The next day I accordinglycame
with Judge Harns, and others, to Providence, We
waited on Judge Dorrance for his afliftance, and
requefted of hin a fearch warrant, in order to reco-
ver the dead body. But our application being 1n
the evening, Judge Dorrance advifed wus to wait
’till the next day, as it would be illegal o ferve a
fearch warraat in the nighc. He faid he wouid {znd
for Dr. Bowen that he might meer vs at the Judze's
houfe next morning, in order that the affiir mighe
be compromiied amicably and properly. In the
morntog we returned to Judge Dorrance’s houle,
but Dr. Bowen not teing there, Judge Dorrance in-
formed us that Dr, Bowen had been preveneed fron |
coming, . but delired to fee wus at hisown houle,
We went to the Dottor’s houfe and found him at
home ; and after acquainting him with the impori of
our bufinefs,he withed to know of us what we delired
to have done in the calc. After fome converfauon, [
propefed that the body (hould be carried «.ack to Sci=
tuate, and there buried, as decently as 1t was at-firlt, ac
the expence of thofe who tock itaway ; and that the
town of Scituate be fatisfied for the expences they
had already beea at.  Dr. Bowen affured us, that he
had oo interelt or concern in the dead body, or1n
bringing it away : That he had never feen the hzdy,
. aind,
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and, probably never fhould ; but as his young men
appeared to have affifted in “the tranfaétion, he was
difpoled, in their behalf, to do every thing reafunable
towards a f2t:sfattory fettlement. He obferved, that
it was probable the young men would not willingly
be prevailed on to carry the body back themielves ;

and propofed that we fhould convey the body our-
felves to Scituate, and engaged to pay us therefor.

This propcfal we did not agree to. - After fome fur-

ther difcourfe on the fubject, we ftated to the Doc-

tor the fum of money we would take, and the mea-
fures we were willing fhould be purfued in regard to
the dead man ; to which the Doétor finally agreed.
‘1 he - grecment was, that Dr. Bowen fhould pay us
forty Dollars ; {hould caufe the man to be decently
butied in Providence, under the direttions of Judge
Lcrrance, and fhould pledge his word that the bo-
dy fhouid there lie undifturbed. We then agreed
that the rerms of agreemenrt fhould be committed to
writing and figned by ourftives and feveral other
perions who had come from Scitvate, on the fame
bufinefs ; and for the purpole of cxecuting the writ.
ir g, we concluded te meer, the fan.e day, at Hoyle’s

ta.crn, where all thofe who were to fign the paper
would al:-.c"rd Whereupon Dr. Bowen mec us at

Hoy!c’s, zccording to appointment, and there we
cxccuted a writted agrecment containing the whole
of our engagements, according to the underftanding
of the refpective parties.  Dr, Bowen then 1inform-
¢d us thaL he had converfed with judg¢ Dorraace

ConCeruing the parthe was to perform in the agree«
mcrt, and that the Judge had confented tothe un--

muamnw

5

[ The witnefs perufed the copy of the agreement,
in e Defendani’s puﬂ:ﬂian, and dtclarea 1L to bﬂ,
iz his b-.litr, curn:t:tj

Crof



29

Crofs-examined.

Queftion by Plaintiff’s Counfel, . Was Judge
Dorrance prelent when the agreement was made 2

Anfwer. He was not prefent when the agreement
was made, nor when it was figned ; neither did I
fee him afterwards.

Q. Did you confider Judge Dorrance as a party -
to the agreement ?

4. ‘1did not.

9. By Defendant’s Counfel. When did you firft
hear the ftory of the dead body’s being fold for a
Beaver-hat ?

A. 1 da not precifely recollect, but believe it was
about the firlt of May, 1800, At that time the
Governor alked me concerning the agreement, and
I gave him a copy of it, which [ believe to be the
fame copy here produced, I. do not remember.
:rhen firt I heard the itory coacerning the Beaver-

at,

The next witnefs examined was JOSEPH'
KNIGHT, He repeated the teftimony of Gideon
Aultin, fo far as he was knowing to the f{ame, with
but lictle variation. He faid he was prefent when
the agreement was made with Dr. Bowen, and was
one who figned the writing : That Judge Dorrance
was to give directions concerning the manner of bu-
rying the body ; and from theé terms of the agree-
ment, he at the time, underftood that Dr. Bowen
was refponfible for the body’s remaining in the
ground undiftarbed. On teing queltioned, he faid
he never beard the ftory reported of the body’s be-
- 1ng fold, ull fome time /af {pring. The
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The Defendant’s next witnefs was GIDEON
ANGELL. He teftified tothe following purport.
¢« Mr. Auftin had the care of the burial of the man,
which was done on Saturday, the 13th of February,
1799. On the fameday, after the burial, two men
arrivied at Scituate, and defired to examine the bo-
dy, in order to afcertain whether it rmghl: not be a
certain perfon of their acquaintance, who lived at
{nme diftance, and had been for fome time mlﬂing.
I'hé body was immediately dug vp for thﬁll’ in{pec-
tion, but proved not to be tae perfon they fought for,
whereupon it was again committed to the -{ame
grave. During the time of the burial, a youag man,
fuppofed to belong at Proyidence was obferved to
be prefent. This circumftance excited fufpicion in .
fome, that there were intentions to privately take
the body away ; and thar this young man had been
fent for the purpofe of difcovering where the body
was tobe'laid,  With the ﬁxpc&atmn uf fuch an at~ .
tempt, and for the purpofe of preventing its fuccefs,
the grave was watched by the mhabltanh during
the firft night after the burial. Bur, on thr: mghl:
following, being 'Sunday night, the grave was not
watched, and in'the courfe of the night the body was
taken up and carried away. I was ane of the per =
. ons who followed the track of the fleighto Provi-
dr:m: .»and with Mr, Auftin and others, confulied
the UH? ernor on the fubjeﬂ: I was alfo prefent the
nexg day, a Dr. Bawen’s houf, when the agreement
was entered jnt0s I recollect, at that time, thac the
Dottor oblerved | that he bad never feen the body,
and had no concerii directlv or indiceitly, abour i,

‘' he Dottor furiher’ u‘blﬂ"‘fd that the body had by ._
i hat time, probably,. b:mmu outrid,and unfuitable for
anatamical purpofes, if :ht:rc w€ere no objections to
ics being 10 appropriated.’ He was deflirous the bor
dy [hould bz azain buried, and all dm*'cuil:lf.'s ceale,
'\ he agreemenz was ﬁnallv concluded in e maaner
cefified by the other ‘witnefles,”, © © Ruzflion
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in danger of violence from the refentment of the
people, It was however agreed upon in manner
teftified by the former witneffes. Dr. Bowen a.
greed to I:mr)ir the body ¢ and let him lie and re-
“main,” I was one whu figoed the agreemeant.” The
“witnefs did rot remember when firft he heard the
report of Judge Dorrancc’s felling the body.

Queftion by Plaintiff’s Counfel. Do you know
what expence the town of Scituate fuffered on ace
count of the burial of the dead man ¢

Jv Nl.'ih

SQUIRE FRANKLIN, related the hiftory of
the two journies from Scituate in nearly the fame
manner as the witneffes had done before. He faid,
¢ Dr. Bowen propefed that the body fhould be re-
turned to Scitvate, in the might, and that we fhould
affit in burving it; but we did not agree to the
propofal. We finally came to an agreement that
Dr. Bowen fhouvld deiray the expences of the town
of Scituate already incurred : That the body fhould
be buried in Providence, under the direction of
Judge Dorrance, in as decent a manner as it had
before been 1n Scituate, and that the body thould
lic undifturbed. The Dnctor enquired of us what
the expences of the town would probaoly amount
to ? Judge Harris took a pen and iok, and after
making fome calculation upon paper, an(wered,
that the expences amounted to abeut Forty Dollars,
which the Do&or atterward paid.  Acthe ume the
agreement was execuced at Hoyle’s, Dr. bowen
was prefent and informed us that he had feen Judge
Dorrance who had acceptec ihe u1denakmg as was
piopoled in our agreement.”” ‘Lhe witueis iaid he
had irequently heard the ftory of the Beayei-Hat re-
ported in Scituate, but could not recolleét by whom
©F at what tune, Cruls
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Cmfs-ﬂxammed _
Qﬁ{ﬁ:mf 5)' I!'Iamrgﬁ".r Counfel, Was Judge Dor-
rance prefent withyou at any ume in the courle of
the agreement : |

A. H: was not.

Q Were Judge Dorrance and Dr. Bawcn both
'togﬂh:;, prcftnt with you anﬂ thofe with you from

Scituate, at any time in the courfe of the whole
tranfa&mn g

4. ‘Nu; hcy were Rot. |

Q. Was yo1, OF any of thul'a with yuu authorized
- or employed by the town of Scituate to tranfact a-
ny part of that bufinefs?

A. No.

EZEKIEL KING teﬂ::ﬁcd to the execution v
the agresment at Hayle’s, 1a the fame manaer s be-
fore related. He faid Dr. Bowea ,agreed that
s the man fhould lie.” He faid he had heard the
report of the Beav:r-h;t, but when or by whqm he
qpuld nnr. tell, Sl by i

"“The next witnefs called b the Deferxdan: was
BENJAMIN RANDALL. The f{ubftance of
ghqfe teftimony was as follows.: ¢ I was called on

Dr. Pardon jBt:rgew;arr,t and, by, him, p:qug[te_d to
mnke a good Beaver-hat, on his account, for
Judge Dorrance. I then told. bim,shat | bad not
then on - hand fuitable | fur for, that purpole 5 but
that I expected fome foon from the northward, and
as foon as 1 could Dhnqlpphje fur I would make
the hat, . But more, ré'ﬂ 0 ,a year elapfed before the
hat s w.a: ﬁmfheti by r cm of my not obtaning the

,JLur
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fur before. As foon as the hat was finithed, 1 fent
it by myv fon, and at the fame time direéted my
fon te get of Judge Dorrance, eithera receipt for
the hat, or an otder upon Dr. Bowen for the a-
mount ; but my fon returned without obtaining
either, Judge Dorrance, however,in the courfe of
the fame day; as he was paffing my fhop, called at
the door and informed me, in the prelence of Refol-
ved Smith,John Beverly, William Browneld and Rap-
~dall Briggs, that he had received the hat of my fon,
and that my fen had requefted of him a written aca
knowledgement of the fame ; and further faid, as
near as 1 can recollect, that the bufinefs between
himand Dr. Bowen being of a delicate naturé, he
did not like to commit any thing to writlng in or=
der to charge Dr. Bowen with the hat. Judge
Dorrance and John Beverly, while at my fhop, foon
got into a high difpute concerning an execution on
which Beverly had been, a little before, commuitted
to goai ; in which tranfadtien, Beverly accufed the
Judge of being concerned ; and in the courfe of
this difpute, many harfh and provoking rerms
were ufed on both fides, ’till Beverly hinted to the
Judge; fomething of “the Beaver-bat,”  Judge
Dorrance afked him, ‘¢ what Beaver-hat 3 Bever=
ly replied;  the one on vour head, for ought I
know ; if you want to know further about it go t&
Scituate.” Soon after this the Judge departed from
theﬂ]gP.I’ 3 e 7 . ; p

Queftion by Defendant’s Coanfel. At what time
did Dr. Bowen firft {peak to you tor the hat 2

A, 1 believe it was toward {pring in 1799 ; pro*
bably in February or Marchy &y

"' Crofs-examined. el
 Rueftion by Plaintiff’s Counfel. Do you kn 3:' for
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what 'confideration Jﬂdgﬁ Darremcu received the
hat oﬂ)r. Buw:n 2

dNa

2 DQ you knnw nf any connivance uf Judge
Dorrance, or any improper-underftanding between
him and Dr. Bowea, relative to the digging up of
the dead man ¢

A. _I do not,

Queftion by the Défendant., Did Dr. Bowen ever
ask you any thing relative to the time when he firlt
fpoke to you for the hat ? s

“The Plaintif’s Counfel objeéted to this queltion’s
being an{wered by the Wmnefs. becaufe Dr. Bowen
was then prefent, and was the proper witnefs to en+
quire of mnccrmng what he might have faid to Mr.
'Rand&ll. :

The Defendant’s Cuunfci contended that the e-
vidence fhould be given by the prefent witnefs, as
the obje@t of the queftion was to fhew, that Dr.
Bowen had laboured and managed the witnefs in or-
der to induce him to qualify the teltimonv he {hould
~give at this tral. ‘thrcupun the Court ordered
the witnefs :opruc:ed in his anfwers

A. Dr. Bowen, fometime fince, met me, near my
fhop, and afked me whether I could remember in
what feafon of the year it was when he [aw me, in
the ftreet, near the Turk’s Head, and firlt requelted
me to make the hat for Judge Dorrance. [ anfwer=
ed him that I thought it was then cold weather, He
re;:h:d that he thought it might bein che fummer,

Queftior
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- Queftion. by, -Pfamfﬂi‘.t - Counfel.. Did Governor
“Fenner ever afk vou any queftions fimilar to thofe
you have now menuon:d of Dr. anen £ s

A. Yes, T think he has, I remember that, after
-the, meetm g of Judge Dorrance and John Beverly,
at my fhop, John Beverly, Refolved Smith and my=
Aelf were at the Governor’s houfe. We there had
‘converfation with the Governor concerning an €x=-
ecution on which Beverlv had been committed to
gaol, which execution had been flfued in- cﬂnic.
quence of a fuit 1n which Beverly, Smith and my-
Aelf were all in fome meafure concerned ; and in
.which we entertained fome diflike tuward]udgf:
‘Dorrance for the'part we fuppofed him to have tak-
en. In che courfe of the converfation, Beverly in-
troduced the ftory of Judge Dorrance’s felling the
‘dead body for a Beaver-hat, as an. additional cir-
“cumftance to the bufinefs of the exccution, againft
“the charalter of Judge Dorrance, The Governor
“enquired " of ‘us” particularly relative to the Beaver-

hat, and we gave him all the mformanun we puf-
f::fTed ﬂnth{: Iuhjcft. fT A

Then fallnwpﬂ thc tq[l;wnuny anDHN BEVER-
Y5 This wuaeis, in. order to [ipulate with the
1 Court for their protection againft any profecution he
- might fubje& himfelf to, on account cf any -thiag he
fhould teftify to, which would criminate him{elf;
proceeded to relate” a - ftory, partlculariy to th:
Cuur:,w t‘lﬁ fallawmg purpurt 3

¢ ‘Ss}me years ﬁnce o thmk ahuut the year 1794,
1 was indecbted to one James Atwood, to the a-
mouat of four or five hundred dollars, for gaods re-
_cetved at his ftore ; and in order tofecure the pay-
~ment of which, Gerfhom Jones figned a note with
A & payable to Atwoud '1 hls note was afterward

put
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putin foit. apainft Janns and myfelf..  Judgment
~_was obtained thereon and execurion iffued ; but the
_execution expired without being fatisfied, h'li' reafon
.thac. Nehemiah Kasght, Efq.. thnn Sheriff of the
: caun;y. to whofe hands the execution was commite
ted for fervice, for fome reafon or other, did not
anake fervice of the fame. = A {uit was thereafter
-commenced in the name of Jamcs Atwood as Truf.
teeto Judge qurance, againft Benjamin Randall as
 bail for me, in the former fuit, for the amount of
]zq fame debt,  Whereupoa Raadall, for his own
Aecurity, caufed me to be arreted and confined in
glp], ’till ke fhould have an opportunity of {urrend-
(ering me in his own difcharge, which he accordingly
_did, before final judgment was obtained againit him.
“.,I., was then cemmmitted again to goal, by order of the
Court, on the priginal judgment; aad there remain-
_ed ’will I availed myfelf of che law of tne State per-
- mittiag  me 10 {wear out of gual. - I then fuppoied
that Judge Dorrance had become poflefled of the
~_property of the judgment, and in the fuit againft
. Randall made ufe of Atwood’s name as a neceffary
. meafure for recovering the debr: Buc [ {ince have
c;llfcnvered that Gerfhom Jones was then thereal
_owner of the judgment, by having privately fatisfi-
_ed Atwood therefor : That he was the caufe of the
l;lt being commenced thereon againft Randall, and
~made ule.of Judge Dorrance’s name, ina fict-
aflignment, in order to recover the debt from
Randall, or from me, fron whom it was whally
ue ; %o that Judge Dorrance was eatirely free from

] any attive parl: in the buﬂnefs.

. “Soon af;er I had fwurn out of gnal fume irregu-

; llarmes wese dilcovered 1n the tranialtions relative

1o my difcharge therefrom, and another fuir wasin-

_mediately  commenced, in the name of James At-
wood as [ruitee to Judge Dorrance, agamit Refol.

v:d
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ved Smith, who was then keeper of the goal, for
the amount of the debt on which I had been com-
mitted. . In tlis' Aétion, judgment was finally ob-
tained againft Smith for the amount of the debr, by
-thatr time increafed to a fum much larger than the
original amount. Smith being thus unfortunately
-involved in a heavy debt, preferred z petition to the
General Affembly for relief. An Altof the Gene-
ral Afflembly was pafled, difcharging Smith of the
Debt, and directing that executioa fhould iffue, on
the {ame judgment for which 1 had been imprz{oned,
againlt Gerfhom Jones and me. The execution
was accordingly ifflued, and Jones and I commicted
thereon 0 gaol, Jones immediately lefc the goal
on a thirty per cent, bond, and I remained impri-
foned till I was difcharged by an a& of che General
Aflembly, ftaying all cuvil proceedings againlt me,
in confequence of a petition [ have now pending be=
fore them for the benefic of the Infolvent Att, '

¢ had thus repeatedly been imprifoned, and perfe-
cuted with the vexation ot kaw-fuits, wherein Judge
Dorrance’s name continually appeared, rtill I had
conceived a hatred again{t him the molt violent and
implacable ; and became refolved to ftigmatize his -
character to the urmoit gratification of rage and re-
venge. Abaut the time when Smith’s pettion was
granted by the General Afflembly, I related to the
Governor, at his requeft, an account of the whole
tranfaction relative to the Atwood bufinefs, and he
then defired me to commit the whole ftory to writ-
ing for his ufe. I accordingly began the tafk, part-
ly wo gratify the Governor and partly with a defire
1o publifh to the world what I then conceived to be
Judge Dorrance’s injurious treatment towards me,
and alfo the mifconduct of others whorn I fulpectea
to have connived with and affitted him. 1 proceeded
in my hiltory, colouring the conduct of Judge Dor-
rance
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fance in the moft exaggerated and aggravated terms,
till I had written many fheets of paper. In addition
to the accountof thofe law-fuits, I colletted every
circumftance of Judge Dorrance’s life, which I
could difcover to have been reported to his difad~
vantage ; aud as one of thofe circumftances, I made
‘ufe of the ftory’ which 1 am now called on to tef-
tify cunccmmg his felling the dead body for a Bea.
ver-hat,”

~ After the witnefs had obtained an aﬂ‘urancc uf thc
influence of the Court for his proteétion, he ad-
drefled himfelf to the Jury,in {ubftance as follows 2

¢ The Governor had defired me to commit the
flory of the Atwood debt to writing for his infpec..
tion, which I accordingly did. As Judge Porrance
was the principal charaéter in my ftery, and the
foremoft object of my wrath, I fought for every
thing which I thought mlnrht plaufibly appear a-
gamﬂ: him; I even formifed aad gueffed at many
‘things and inferted them without any authority what-
ever. About three weeks after a report was circula-
ted of a dead man’s being breught from Scituate to
Providence, and after being buried under Judge
Dorrance’s orders  was dug up. I happened to
have fome converfation with Benjamin Randall re-
lative to the law-fuic with Acwood, in which his
name was frequently ufed. In the courle of this
converfation, Randall informed me that he had
been requefted by ¢ Doffor to make a Beaver-hat
fer Judge Dorrance, and one of us (I do nort re-
member which) immediately fuggefted the idea,
that this hat muft have been a confideration for
Judge Dorrance’s conniving at the digging up of tie
budy. As we were [itting by the fire together, we
guefled between ourfelves that this was™ “like c.
nough the cafe,” ' Randall /urmi/ed lome things and
1’ gueffed at others,  tll, in our imaginatiens, we
prc::nded to have unravelled anether fcandalous fto-

ry
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sy ‘againft Judge Dorrance. This I corceived to
b: a valuable acquifition to my hiftory of Judge
Dorrance’s conduct, and accordingly improved it to
the beft advantage. Soon after this, Benjamin
Randall, Refolved Smith and myfelf were at the Go-
vernor’s houfe. The Governor enquired of me re-
fpecting the Atwood bufinefs, andq[ prefented him
with the writing, containing that ftory, and alfo in-
formed him of the circumftances which had been
furmifed corncerning the dead body and Beaver.har,
Randall and I informed the Govérnor of our fufpi.
cions refpc&mg the hat, andof our reafons why we
Jufpedded, The Gevernor then declared to us, thar
he had never before heard any thing of the ftory of
the Beaver-har, and forther enquired particularly of
us refpe@ing the tranfaction ; but all the informa-
tion we gave him on the fubjett was by way of
< guefs.”  Some timé in Apnl, 1800, foon after
Randall removed from North-Providence to Prov-
1dcnce, I was athis ﬂm P> and he mentioned bcfur:
me, and {everal others, his baving fimthed Judge
Dorrance’s hat and fent it to him. In the courfe of
Randall’s narration Judge Dorrance flopped at the
ihup-dnnr, and 1informed Randall that his {Ran.
dail’s) fon had brought nim a hat, and had requeft=
ed of him a receipt or an order ; but that he did nof
give the writing, as he thought it was unneceffary,
htmufa the hat was to be charged ro Dr. Bowen ;
and added, that he did notlike to give any writing in
the buﬁnefs, becaufe the macter was of a delicase na-
_fure, and turther faid he had racher Randali would
take the hat back, than that he fhoaid be obliged to
draw upon Dr. Bowen for.chac which was defigned
as a piefent. _In the mean time, I, in order to irris
tate Judge Dorrance, began n:lq,:tpg to Walham
ﬁruv.uml who was ptefc:m, the cm:umftances con=
cerning Judge Dorrance’s condudt in the Atwuoﬁ
.pw..iuu:, and the hittory 1 had hecp wrang, of the

lame,
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while T was at the Governor’s houfe John Beverly
and Benjsmin Randall camein, and in the prefence
of the Governor and me, related the ftory of Judge
Dorrance’s felling the dead man for a Beaver-hat ;
and after the ftory of that tranfaction was finithed,

Beverly added, that Judge Dorrance had the impus
dence to wear the fame hat on his head in Town-
meeting, while he officiated as Moderator thereof,
A few daysafter this; I was at the General Eleftion
at Newport, where Judge Dorrance alfo attended. - -
He and I had there fome converfation relative to the
ftory then circvlating, concerning his conduct in
felling the dead man. The Judge obferved that ig
was an abfolute falfehood, invented, as he foppofed,

by - John Beverly and Bcnjamm Randall for the
purpofe of ﬂranfgmg thewr malignity and refentr
ment. He informed me'that, the hat was a prefenc
frems Dr, Bowen, for fervices renderéd 1n the fettle=
ment of Mr. Ward’s eflate. 1 have irequently
heard the ftory in the country; arnd the perfon frurn
whom 1 firft head ir, I think was Refolved Smith ;

which, to the beft ot my remembrance, wasnot be"
fore ﬁpni 13::0

]OE RANDALL. <In April, 18co, I was
at -the Governor’s houfe, and faw John Beverly
and Benjamin Rardall there. Beverly related the
ftory of the dead body and  Beaver-hai, and faid
that he believed that Judge Dorrance feld the body
for the hat ; and Randall alfo faid he was of the fame
ojinion. From the Ghvernur s converfation, 1 had
reafon to think he had no information on that fubjet
but - what he received from Beverly and Randall.
1 had myfeif heard the ftory from Refolved Smuth,

about a week before 1 was. at the Guvemnrs, ar-d
have lince heard it at fondry times,

THOMAS HAZARD. “In April, Iﬁop;li



45

was at the Governor’shoufe while Beverly and Rane
dall were there.. Beverly, in my prefence, read to
the Governor a long ftory againft: Judge Dorraace,
‘about an execurion tn which James Atwood, Refol«
ved Smith and others were concerned. At the {fame
time a converfation arofe between the Governor and
thefe men, concerning the digging up and feiling
the dead man for a hat.  Thefe men repre.
fented that Judge Dorrance had undertaken to fee
the man decently. buiied, but inftead of performing
the ergagement, had had a [hem funeral, and cors
ruptly permitted Dr. Bowen to take the body and
diffeét it ; and many obfervations were made on the
fubje& which i do not recolle&t. Afterthele men
were gone, I converfed with the Governor on the
fubject of their converfation about the dead man ;
and he appeared to be much irritated with the tranfs
action, and made ufeof many harth and violent ex-
preffions. He faid the people of Scituate might
pellibly reflect on him for fome negligence he mighe
be fuppofed to be guiley.of. He faid,  if shis is
true, Dosrance is no more fic for a jndge than the

Devil.” The ftur_? however agpear: to be new to
l:h: Governor,”

 ESEK SMI']. [-I teltified, that Refolved Smith
was at his houle in September or Qctaber, 1800,
.;md re}au:d the ﬁury to him, which was the firk
time he ever heard it. He added, that little had
ever been faid about it in the neighoourhoad where
be belonged ; but ia Scituate, he bad, fince the ine

formatien uf Refolved Smith, heard the [tury many
times.”

DOCTOR ANTHONY teftified, tha: he heard
De. Benjamin Dyer inform a man by the name of
“Williamns, that the bones of the dead man, after he
was difleCted by Pardon Bowen, werg fold for Five

Dﬂffdr.:
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ftory and the Governor procured him to commit it
to writing, Judge Dorrance feemed much difpleafed
with Gov. Fenner’s conduét, and difcovered much re.
fentment towardshim. He declared the ftory was a
grofs falfhood, wholly originated through malignity ¢
That the hat given by Dottor Bowen was a mere pre.
fent, as a friendly acknowledgement, as he fuppofed,
for affiftance given in the fetclement of Mr., Ward'’s

eltate.”

9. Had ynﬁ ever heard the ftory of the Beaver~hat
before the: converfation with Judge Dorrance ?

A. 1 heard it on my paffage to Newport at that
time.

-Who-was on board the packet wu:h you, en
that paifage P

A. 1 recollett Gov. Fenner, Dr. Comftock, Dawd
Sayles, and feveral others.

. Did you hear the ftory on the paffage from Govs
Fenner himielf, or was he prefent at any time when
it was told to you ?

- A. I underftood that Judge Dorrance was to be
oppofed, and this ftory was fuggefted as a reafon ;
and 1 think the Governor was pre:f:m when thtﬁ:
circumflances were mentioned.

THOMAS SMITH. He teftified as follows :
©«In Marcoh or Apnl, 1800, I was at Providence,
and faw John Beverly., He told me the ftory about
the dead man who was buried in Providence after
he was brought from Sciruate ; and chat he was
afterwards s.i‘u;:; up and diffected by the Surgeons.
He then pruceedea ia thele wordss  * This was a

damned
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John Eddy, and a perfon that Jived with Dr. Dyer,
whofe name 1 do not recolleét, afiifted 1n putting
the bedy intothe coffin ; and George W, Hoppin,
William Spencer and mylelf, removed the body to
the burying-ground.

!

Q. By thefame. Was the body put into acoffin
of the vival form ¢

A. The body was put into a rough, pine i:lnx,.
not made in the ufual form of a coffin.

8, Py the fame. Was the body, when put into
the coffin, covered with a fhirt, and otherwife laid
out in a common and decent manner ?

4. 1thad no fhirt on, and to the beft of my re-
colléétion no cover at all.

Q. By the fame. "How far below the furface of
the carth was the coffin fettled ?

A. To the beft of my recollection, not to exceed
eighteen inches,

9. By Ditto. Who were the four perfnnﬁ who
- aflilted you in taking up the dead body, after you
had buried it ? |

A. Horatio G. Bowen, George W. Hoppin, Joha
Eddy, and a perfon who lived with Dr. Dyer, whofe

name 1 do not recolle&.

Q. By Ditto, 'What opefations were performed
on the dead body the fame night after you had re=
moved 1t from the grave to Mr, Suggin's 7

A, The body was opened and the entrails taken

out, 2,






.5

(1

 Smm—

te the back fide of the._huufe,- and you will find the
door opened ; go in at the door, you will fee a
flight of ftairs, afcend them and turn to the night,

~ and you will fee a chamberdoor open, and a lighted

candle ftanding onthe floor ; in that room depofit
the body. '

Q. By Ditto. Did John Dorrance, Efg. give
you any directions in what manner, and at what time
to bury the dead bedy 3

4. Na,

9. By Ditto. Was the box in which the body
was Jaid naled clofely or only tacked2 _
A. Tt was io nailed that the claws of the h#ﬁ:mcr

would pals under the heads of the nailsto draw
them. :

9, By Dite. Doyou know what becameof the
fleth which was taken from that corpfe, or the
contents of the breaft ?

e 4t wqﬁﬁut prefent ﬁ_{hg:ni the flefh was taken off,
but the heart and lights were buried in the [ame

fhop that the entrails were, but not at the fame tine

nor in_fame place. - And iurther the Deponent faith
not, ' i o ' |

Here clofed the evidence produced on tht; part
of the Defendanty in. the opening of the firrt 1ffue,

‘. On finifhing the examination of the Defendant’s

witnefles, Mr. Rabbins proceeded in his defence’in
the opening of the. Cafe. He refted the defence on
the feveral differcnt grounds following ¢

0 ' R ' Firft.
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Firt, That the words alledged to have been
fpoken by the Defendant were ¢rue ; which he con-
tended was fully evinced by the teltimony adduced
by the Defendant, He obferved that Dr, Bowen

* had engaged to caufe the body to be decently bu-
ried 'n Providence, and that it fhould forever lie un-
difturbed. Judge Dorrance had become obligated
to fee all the engagements of Dr. Bowen fulfilled,
as refpected the bunal, and alfo became refponfible
for tne body’s remaining undifturbed : That inftead
of burying the bodyv in a decent manner, and {uf.
fering it to lie undifturbed, as they had agreed, they
had a¢ted a kind of mockery of funeral ceremony,
and buried it in a very indecent manner, fcarcely
eighteen inches under ground, and had it immedi-
ately after, taken up and diffe¢ted. < Judge Dor-
rance had the care, the cultodv, the controul and
fuperintendance of the body.” Dr. Bowen had no
nignt to interfere with or difpofe of it otherwife than
according to Judge Dorrance’s fpecial permiffion,—
Waether Dr. Bowen himfelf, or any other perfen
was: atually employed in the difpofal of the body,
Was 1mmaterial, becaufe it muft have been done
througn his agencv, and from Judge Dorrance’s au-
wionity.  For Judge Dorrance to fuffer the body to
be dug up was a violation of truft, of promife, and
duty, which could by no means happen by an aét of
m«re negligence, 1n delivering the body from hiz
own cultudy, he muft have been guilty of connivance

. and coilufion. . Thele circumftances afforded aa ir.

_rehttisle prefumpuioa, that Judge Dorrance previe
‘oully knew that the body would oe dug up, and fi.

~ lently confented to 1t at the time,

 Mr. Robbins prapofed a cale which he conceived
to be paraliel to the one in queftion. He faid,
¢¢ Suppofe the driver of a mail ftage fhould be pro-
fecuced for Jelling the mail ; but on the trial it fhould

=
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not be proved that he atually made a formal bargain
with any one ; but that ke only peramreed a theef
td teal it. In fuch cafe it could not be doubted
bat that the ftage driver mult be convited, though
he fhould be direltly charged in the indictment or
fuit with felling it ; becaufe it would be prefumed
that he would not have fuffered the thief ro take it,
uniefs he had received fome compenfation in re=
turn.” So, in the prefent cafe, Judge Dorrance’s
connivance weont totche full extent of making him a
principal in the wranfaction of digging up the body.

~ Inorder to eftabhfh a prefumption that the Bea-
ver-hat was a copnfideranion for Judge Dorrance’s
connivance, the Jury were called to a conlideration

of the teltimony of Randall and Beverly. The pres

tended fervices in the matter of Mr. Ward’s eltite
was a fubterfuge of ‘the Plaintiff’s totally without
foundation ; a mere pretence. T he coincidence of the
tine of digzing up the body with that of prefenting
the hat was a ftrong circymutance for prefuming the
hat to have beea a payment for the body. Judge
Durrance himfeif had faid the prefeat of the hag
was a delicate matier, and had refufed to truft any
ghing to- writing. on-the occafion. If the hat was
peally given for fervices rendered in fetrling Mr.
‘Ward's cltate, where:was 'the impropriety in giving
a receipt §  There was no degree of wnfamy - nor fn<
delicacy attached to receiving a reatonable conpens
fativn for honelt and legalfervices.  No dslicacy
whatever could interfere with Judge Dorrance’s re=
ceiving a prefeptfrom a fair and. honourasic mo=
tve, or payment for.a fair.and honouraule confider-
ation. His fcrupulous and cautious canduét was
without doubt the effeét of acunicioulnefs of fome
impiopricly 1a bis own.eonduct. : ;

~ The, fecond g'rqun'r;l of .-dcféncé .w#sﬁ-dcniall- of the
& : words

¥ -
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taken, and an owner ; yet if the owner be unknown,
provided thereis a |irnprrty,1t is larceny tc ftealir,and
an indi@ment will lie for the goods of a perfin un-
known.—This is the cafe of ftealing a throud out of
a grave ; which is the property of thofe, who ever
they were, that buried the deceafed ; but ftealing the
corpfe itfelf, which has no owner (though a matter
of great indecency) is ®o felony, utalefs fome of thé
grave clothes be ftolen with it,” Thus, faid Mr.
Raobbins, it is confidered by the laws of England,
- that when the human body is once divefted of the
functions of life, when once the power of death has
rendered it ufelefs and unprofitable to the furviving,
«it becomes a caft out beyond the reach of the laws or
protection of fociety ;—=it becomes a loathfome ob-
ject of abhorrence, difclaimed and deferted by all the
living of the human race.”—He cited 2 Black. Com,
429, 12 Rep. 113. Haynes’s cafe. 3 Inft. 110.1n
order to fhew that no civil aftion could be brought
by any perion, for damages, where a cdead body
thould be difturbed, a monument defaced, or the
grave-cloths taken away. He argued that tne dead -
body fuppoled to be dug up, or permitted to be dug
up, by Judge Dorrance, was of all dead bodies the
moft peculiarly unworthy the proteion or notice of
the law. ltwas, as if moral duty required 1t to be
ftigmatized and ircated with indignity and negiect.
It was the dead body of a total ftranger in the land,
who had wickedly and felonioufly committed the
crime of fuicide, and had thereby forfeiced all de-
cent regard, and even the ordinary rites of cartttian
fepulture. A fuicide, by the common law, in a vine
diftive manner, is configned to utter difgrace, his
progerty to confifcation, and his body to an ignomin-
1ous burial in the highway, with a ftake crivea turo’
it, to exhibit a {pectacle ot infamy and abhorrence to
his memory,~4 Black, Com. 190,~Such tengthe
circumitances of the dead body in queltion, these
couid
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t&ﬁl:f berio crime i ’i‘nputed, in i'ajrmg that ' u: wa.g
% “H aud diffe@ted, 3 :

“" It was forther argued, thal: the' wérds cuuld not
‘be &mhib}t by reafon of their being fpnkun againtt
_ gﬁ& e Dorrance as a public officer. | ‘He was hot
A with mnfconduét in his official capacicy,
zs']udae of the Court of Common’ Pleas; or
"P'i"cﬁdtrh of thﬁ' wan-CaunctL His Engacrﬁ-
mcm‘i in the's contradt for burying the bady were en-
tifef# of a private’ and individual nature :  For,
ﬂ‘mﬁiﬂ ‘the: wnllds ftated in the fixch, feventh a-.nﬂ
eighth counts of the Declaration, are faid to be fpo-
- %ken of ‘and concernin ng the Plaiantiffin the e:gcutmn
ﬁfﬁ?.*'nfﬁte of Juttice of the Court of Common Pleas,
yet the words uhemfclves naunm be conftrued to im=
y any want of i integricy i him, in the execution
of thac ofiice.  The.words were therefore not ac=
ﬂfﬁbgc by r:ai‘un nf Ins bt:‘&g a public officer, -
& g
The next _pbmt in M:’. Robbins’ argument was
to prove, that the Plainuff ought not to recover on
‘account of any fpecial dhmagc: which he had futain~
ed by reafon of the words’ being fpoksn. He ob~
ferved, that words muft' be in thgmfel#g:s ationas
ble, or they muft becomefo by reafon of fome [pe~
‘cial damage arifing from them.  The damage, ltatcd
‘in the Declaration, of the feceffion of the Piamnulf’s
friends from hisfociety was d matter of mere form,
and common to all declarations for 8ander. Such
damages, when fet forth, are never neceffary to be
Pproved, unlefs fome pecuaiary lofs can be proved to
have been fuftained by reafon of the departere of
fuch friends, He contended, that the other damages.
ftated in the Declaration, concerning the plaintiff's
loofing a number of votes at his tl:&mﬂ, were not
proved ; buton the contrary, it was proved that the
thtlﬂ" was actually cledted to the effice for which
i b
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he was a candidate, without oppofition. Bot the
Plaintiff was guilty of an informality in his Declara-
tion which effe@ually excluded from him all poffi-
ble advantage ftom {pecial damages, fhould he be
able te prove them. This defect ought to prevent
the Jury frem hearing or making ule of auy evidence
op the fubject of fpecial damages. If the Plaintiff
bad afually loft the fociety of his friends, or the
votes which he pretended to have loft, it was necef»
fary for him, or order to recover of the Defendant,
on account of fpecial damage, tohave fpeciaily de-
clared what perfons had left his houfe; and what
members of the General Aflembly had withheld from
him their votes, by reafon of the words {pokea. It
was abiﬁ:lﬁtély neceflary to mention their " names
particularly, or ke could not f_L‘l_del't his declaration,
To eftablifh this, he read LEipinafle N. P. g15.—

“ Note, that faying generally per quod feveral per-
fons left the houfe, witheut naming any in particular,
is not {pecial damage,” And alfo, ibid. §20. ¢ So
in fuch place of words, ationable, whatever fpecial
damage 15 laid the Plaintiff may go into evidence of
it ; but not more : As where the words were,  you
are a thief and I'll prove you fo,” with a per qued,
that by reafon of them one Fokn Merry, and feveral
others, left off dealing with him ; the Chief Juf-
Jice allowed the Plaintiff to go into evidence as to
Merry, but not as to the reft.” Thefe authoritics,
in his opinion, excluded the Plainuff, in the prefent
Cafe, from all confideration of fpecial damages,

In the evening of the fecond day of the trial, the
Plaintiff’s Counfel firlt rofe 1n fupport of che fuit.

The Plaintiff’s Cmfnfel, after fome oblervations
on the nature and object of the action, proceeded to
the ¢xamination of their witnefles ; the firft of whom
was Dr, Parden Bowen, who teftified in the follow-
ing manner ¢ € About

o
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< About the middle of February, 1799, I was
informed by John Dorrance, Efg. that Mr. John
Harris, and feveral other perfons, from the town of
Scitnate, had been at his houfe; refpecting the dead
body of a man who had hung himfelf, in chat town;
and whom, thev faid; had been taken up, for the
purpofe of diffeGion, by the pupils of Dr. Dyer and
my own, and was advifed by Mr. Dorrance to cal}
as his houfe, and fee the gentlemen on the fubject,
I accordingly met them there, and entered into
converfation with them on the fubject, and endeav-
oured to convince them of the neceflity of acquiring
anaromical knowledge by diffetion, if we meant to
qualify outfelves to preferve the lives and limbs of
eur fellow.creatures, and the propriety of taking
this perfon, as he was a ftranger, eatirely unknown,
and had no friends nor relatives whofe feelings
could be hurt by his duletion. But, fiading thac
my reafons had no effedt to coavince them, I then
propofed an accommodation with them, on hehalf of
the young gentlemen eoncerned in the bufinefs, rold
them that | would fee the young gentlemen, and af<
terward mec them at my houfe, After feeing the
young gentleinen, I met the Scituace gentiemen, at
my houie, where we had a long converfation on the
fubject ; and after faying a great deal abourt the
marter, we agreed to give them Forty Dolles,
which | afterward paid them ac Col. Hoyle’s tavern,
We aifo eatered inwo a fpecific agreement refpeét-
1ng the difpolal of the body, which was commiited
to writing, according to the underltanding of the
patues refpectively,” '

Here the witnefs prodeced a writing which he
declared to be the lame agreement, in the hand wrie
ting of Judge Kurris, one of the figners ; which
_vhich was read in the following words

»

‘ ;‘ -'Knnw all men by thefe pr'clents,, that whereas
: the
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the dead body of a ftranger, who, abouta week' a«
go, hung himfelf in the town of Scituare, was taken
from Scituate by certain perfons unknown. And
whereas the people of faid town are-much alarmed °
about it : Therefore know ye, thatan confideration .
of the fum of Fortv Dollars to us in hand paid by
Pardon Bawen, of Providence, Phyfician, we, John-
Hairis, Gideon Auftin, ] jun. Jofeph Knight, Gideoa .
Angell, Samuel W:ilbour, jun. and Squwe Franklin,
all nF {ald Scituate, Yeomen, do bind ourfelves,
our heirs, executors and adminiftrators, that we will .
forever indemnify and fave harmlefs, from all da-
mages and cofts whatfoever, all and every perfon .
or perfons who fhall /a// or may, atany nme here- .
after, be profecuted, in any manaer whatever, by the.
faid town ot Scituate, or any inhabitant thereof, on:
accoun: of the perpetration of the aforefaid deed,
which is allo in conflideration of the faid Pardon’s
u.greem’-r to haye the abovefd, bodv Deacently buria
ed, under the direftion of Joha Dorrance, Efgr. of
1;11::1 Providence, Witnels our hands, at me.-
gence, the 1@:*1dajr of February, A. D 1-;99
Y “JOHN HARRIS,
GIDEON AUSTIN
JOSEPH KNIGHT,
GIDEON aN{Jh.LL
SAMUEL WILBDUR Jun,
L T

AR SQUIRE X FRP;NKLIN

T4 mark,”
Witnefs, |
Josepa Mason,
Geo. W. Horrin.”

The witnefs continued his relation as fnllbws i

% I conceived by this cuntra&, that I was nni
agtee that the dead budjr fhould be decently buned

uadcr A
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under the direftion of Judge Dorrance. 1 aceord- -
ingly took the directions from Mr. Dorrance, at his
houfe, and, to the bet of my remembrance, in pre. .
fence of Mr. Harris and fome others of the compa-
nv ; which were as follows, viz. That a coffin be
procured,the dead body put therein, and be decently
beried, in the weftern part of the new burying.ground.
allotted to ftrangers. I accordingly direted my
eldeft pupil, Dr. John M, Eddy, to fee that a coffin.
be procured, which he afterward informed me Dr,
Jofeph Mafun had obtained. I then directed Dr.,

Et;td and Mr. Willham Spencer to put the bodv in-
to the coffin, and with their aflitance, carry it and .
burjr it, decently, in the weftera part of the new bu-
rying gmund allotted to ftrangers, as before fpecifi-
¢d. Some time late in the night, when Dr,” Eddy
came home, I heard him come into the next room to
where [ was a-bed, and I called to kim ; he came to
the door; and I enquired if my directions, refpectin g
burying the dead man, had been complied with ?
And he faid they had been, punétually. The next
morning, 1 went to Mr. Dorrance’ sahuufe. and re.
ported to him, thac his diretions had beea complied
with, refpeéting burying the dead man, and thereby
conceived that [ had more than complied with the
ftipulacions I had entered into wich Mr. Harris and
his company, which were only, that I fhould be
- willing that the bedy fhould be buried, under the
directions of Mr. Dorrance; and 1 have reafon to
believe, that he never heard any thing refpecting
the body’s being taken up ull more than a year afiere
wards. That I ever bought this body or any oth~
er of Mr. Dorrance, for a Beaver-hat, for the pur-
pofe of diffection,. or any other purpofe, I folemaly
declare to be cctally falfe, At the fame time, it 18
true thac I prefented to Mrs Dorrance a Beaver-hat ;
but this hac was for cﬁi:nnal fervices rendered 1n
;he arfangement of my own affairs, previous to my

embarking
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embarking for Eurepe in the year 1797, and in the
iertlement of Mr, Ward's eftate on which I admins

iftered. The falts were thefe : Finding my health

very mucn mmparred, tn the year 1797, I had con-
cluded to undertake a voyage to Europe, in hopes

of deriving fome benefii from the fra-voyage, and
of obtaining medical aid from rhe Faculty in Eve
rope, and from the change of climare, For this

ynomentous undertaking 1 made the neceffury ar=
rangements refpecting the fetthng my bufinefs, in
my ar‘erce, and witn fome difficulty prevailed on
Nir. Dorrance to undertake it, This led me to
frequent conferences with him. 1 had now enga-
ged a paffige with Capt. Dning ; and in the very
week 10 wihich I expecied to empark, I was fcized
with the ‘yellow fever, whicn had made its appear=
an e 10 Provideace.  Finding my fitvation becoms

ing fulemin and crivical, Ifenteo Mr. Dorrance, res-

quefting oim to vilit me; which ne did, ata time
when but a wvery few of my peighbours chole to
come into my houle, Mr, Dorrance fat by me,
took the minuwes refpeéting my will, which @ be
wiote, and agrecd to become Execarur thercioy dn
cate ot my death, i however tortanately recovered,
and as lvon as 1 was able went into the country.
Atter my recurn, flud finding vy health very infirm,
] engagea a pafi-ge, and dia afluaily emoark, on
boaru tne fhip Providence, of this poit, bound ior
Hamburgh, m the lauer part of Novemoer, 1797,
I he inip, 1 ber paflage o INewport, was cait away
ina galc oI Wind, and was detained all the laitof
Lecember foliowing to repair the damages ihe had
{futamed. Loen cunbaering the advancec {calen
of wie year, my wfirm health 1o eacountcr a winter’s.
wvoyage, and the critical {icuation in which thee-
ftatc ot my tainer«in<law, Nir. Ward, was left, I
cuncluGed to give up the voyage, whicn I did, and
admuniftered on Mr. Ward’s eltate. ltwas now
that 1 had occalion to call on Mr. Dorrance, to ace
quire
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_auire the information neceflary to the punctual dify
charge of duties, to which 1 was quite a iranger. E
was led to make this preference for thefe reatons
fuppofed him to. pofiefs adequare law-knowled:e,
and he was Prefident of the Town-Copncil, before
whom all the bufinefs muit neceffarly come; and L
bad moreoverthe beft opimon of his integricy, Un.
der thefe circumftances, I frequently catled upon nim
for advice, which he always cordially gave me in eve
ery thing appertaining to my bufinefs; and wheacva
"er 1 afked him what compenfation | fhould make, he
faid that he had no demand againft me, and chat [
was welcome to his advice, 1 feveral timés obfera
ved to him, that 1 thould ' not reft fatizfied vncil I
had made him fome compenfation for his trouble 3
and one day afkedhim ifhe would accept of a Beaver~
hat asa prefent, as I could por find a freedom te
srouble him {urcher about my bulinels, without do-
-ing domething gherefor. I muft. obferve here, that
soy adminiftration bulinefls was far from deing lectled
at that time, and in fact is not to this day, owing o a
law-fuit now pending. Mr,”Dorrance obferved,
that he fhould have no objection to accept the hat
as a prefent, although he had no charge againlt me
for his advice. 1 accordingly requelted Mr. Ben~
jamin Randall to make a Beaver-hat for Mr, Dar=-
Fance, and {end it to him, and charge the jame to my
accounr. Whether this was before or after the
ftranger hung himfelf, I cannot pofitively fay ; as
the idea of buying a dead bedy for a hat had never
occurred to my imagination, I did not particular=
ly charge my miad with the time when 1 ordered
it. It would however appear to me to be previvus
to the fuicide befere aliuded to ; buc whether it was
before or after, or at.the tune, it cannot alter the
fact, which was, that I never did buy of Mr, Dor-
rance a2 dead body for ahat; butthat the hat which
-1 prefented hum was for {ervices rendered me in the
adjultment
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adjuftment of my own affairs, when about taking 4
perilous vovage, under very infirm health, and fot
effential fervices rendered me in fertling Mr, Ward’s
eftate. I would alfo remark, that at the time of my
embarkation, [ put a great part of my notes and
accounts into Mr, Dorrance’s hands, together with
thefe fheets” (fhewing a bundle of papers to the Ju-
ry) ““containing inltrucrions and memorandums relar
tive to the fectlement of my affairs ; and thatall my
books and pap:rs were to have been fent to him afs
ter my df.':parl:urc.

Quefption by Plaintif's Counfel.. Had the dead
body any impreflion on your mind, or did vou
think of it at the time you firft mentioned the prel'inl:
nf the hat to Mr. Dorrance ?

A. Neither the dead body, nor any tranfaction,
or thing in any manner relating to it, were in the
leaft degree connected with the motives for my pre-
{fenting the hat,”

The next witnefs was Dr. HORATIO G. BOW-
EN, who was one of the pupils ftudying under Dr.
Pardon Bowen at the time of the fuicide. He tefti-
fied, that immediately on the report being circula-
ted, that a man had hung himfeif in Scituate, it
was propofed amengft them to procure him for dif=
fection ; which was unanimoufly agreed to by the
whole, and a night was appointed for bringing the
body a-way. The witnefs himfelf was prevented
fiom going on the bufinefs only by reafon of indife
pofition. He never {aw the body after it came to
town uatil after it was removed from Dr. Dyer’s
{ftore to the Theatre. He was prefent, and heid the
lamp while the body was put wnco the coffin, on the
might of 1ts burial in Provadence. 2

L ]
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' 9. By the Plaintif’s Counfel. Did Dr. Pardon
' Bowen at the time, know any thing of the body’s

being taken up after it was buried in Pravidence, or
that it was intended to be taken up?

A A I prefume he did not, at the time it was ta=
ken up, nor till fome days after ; nor did Judge
‘Dorrance in my opinion,; know any thing whatever
of the matter.

Crofs-examined;

L o By the Governor, ‘Was you of the party that
went up to Scituate after the body ?

A. 1 was not.

Dr. GEORGE W, HOPPIN; one of the Stus
~ dents of Dr. Dyer, teftified, that Dr. Jofeph Mafon
had engaged to procure a coffin for the body, and
William Spencer was fent for the coffin to the work=
iman who 1hade it; and brought it to the Theatre
where the body lay, abour eleven o’clock at night &
T hat after waiting fome ume for fear of frightening
or diftarbing the neighbors by removing the body
to the grave, the young gentlemen took the bedy;
with a canvas cloth ther wrapped round it and put
it into the coffin and nailed it up firmly, The body
was then carried to that parc of the welt burying
ground allotted to ftrangers, and there buried in a
grave. The witnels was at the grave, at the time,
and faw every partof che burtal. He-obitrved that
the grave, toward the bottom was rather thorter than
the coffin which was uncommonly long, Thes pared
the grave fome, near the botton, in order to let the
coffin down ; but by reafon of the feverity of the weue
ther, they could not flay to complete it according
to their intentions. The celiin therefore lay conlis
| K derably

[
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derably higher at one end than at the other. The
yourg men flepped into the grave; and endeavoured
to prefs the vpper end of the coffin to a level with
the other, by me-ns of their weight, While the wit-
nefs ftecod on the coffinin the grave, at t e higheft
end, the furface cf the ground was confiderably high=
er than his knecs.  Atter enceavoring in vain to
Jevel the cottin, they cuvered it with dire 1n the ufus
2l n-anner of filling up graves, and rounded cff the
top of the greve 1in decent and ufval torm. The
ceffn was ftraight, large, and much too long for the
budv ; and after the boay was put 1n, 1t was firmly
naned up ; the nails were driven as hard and cffece
tually as nails are ufvally driven into pine bo.rds 3
the greater part of which the witnefs drove hin:felf,
The witnefs was the perlon who went to Scituate
ard faw the buria of the body there. He alfo was

one of the party who went there to bring it away,

He was prefcrrat f veral tmes in the courfe of the
diffe€tion which ne obferved was never fully com*
picted, On being queft.ioned, he faid that Dr.
Cleveland kept the bones, and carried them away
with hini when he removed from Providence. The
witnels was cornfident that Judge Dorrance had no
knowledge, connivaiice or fufpicion of the bedy’s be-
ing by them dug vp, as 1t was within an hour or two
after bumal ; becaufc it 'was, as the wi'neis obferved
Wholly unreceflary for their purpofe that he thould.,
He was alfo cenfident that Dr. Pardon Bowen knew
ne more of the matier than Judge Durrance till
nearlv a week after the body was by the young men
taken up, aud after they themielves had peiformed a
pari of the diffetion, The vilcera were extracted
the lame night the body was buried and taken up ;
after which the body Jay untcuched tor feveral days.

£. By the Governor, Jdfter yin bad taken out
the entrails, bow much fali aid you put nko ibe bo=
&y topreferve it from puirsfaction 2 As

x
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A. _l do not knuﬁr.

The next witnefs was WILLIAM SPENCER.
He teftified as follows : **I received dire&ions from
Dr, Pardon Bowen to diga grave for the dead man
who was brought from Scituate. I accordingly
went to the weit part of the new burying.ground
where ftrangers are ufually buried, and there dug
the grave. 1 returped back to town, and was im-
mediarely fent by feveral young men to the fouch
~part of the town to bring the cotlin, which [ brecughe
to the Theatre. The yourg men went with e into
the Theatre, and I affifted them in putting the hody
1nto the cothn, I then proceeded wiih the horfe and
flcigh with which I firft brought the coffin, to the
grave with the body. 1 was there aflilled by two of
the young gentlemen in burying the pody.”

9. B_r.Pfaiuf{f’s Counfel. Was Dr, Pardon Bow=
en prefent waen (he dody was put into the coffin ?

A. He was not prefent at any part of the bufinefs,

£. In what manner was the coffin nailed up 2

A. ‘There were a great many nails ufed in nailing
it up, and were all well driven, which I fiood by and
{aw done.

.Q Was the body cavered with any cloth :

. It was wrapped in a canvas cloth.

L. Inwhat manner was he buried after you had
earricd him to the grave ¢

The grave was dug fix feet de=p, and of the
pfual length ; but the coffin being longer than §
expected
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expelted it would be when I dug the grav,e, we
found it impoflible to place the coffin horizontally
at the bottom of the grave. We pared the epdsof
the grave as much as the fevere cold weather would
permit us, but fhil were cbliged to leave one end
of the coffin higher than the other. We finally fill-
ed up the grave with dirt and gravel, and rounded
itup at the top as graves ufually are,

Q. How far below the furface of the ground did
you leave the highelt part of the coffin ¢

A. When 1 ftood on the upper end of the coffin
the (urface of the ground was nearly as high asmy

hips,

» Had Judge Dorrance any concern in tha‘
bunaii‘ :

; A. Idid not fee him ncr hear his name mention=
ed 1n any part of the tranfaction ?

Q Had you any knowledge tf*at the hnd}' waﬁ
to be taken up agam, at that time ¢

4. No.

EDWARD MANTON. <“In the winter nf
1799, 1 was one morning with Judge Dorrance at
his thop, and while 1 was there, Dr. Pardun Bowen
cae in and infoimed Judge Dorrance that' the man
had beenburied according to his direftions. After
the Docior was gone, 1 tnqunred of Judge Dorrance
the meaning of what the Do&or alluded to. The
Judge told me the florv of the application of the
Scituste men, and their fetilement with Dr. Bowen,
wherein tiey had agreed thac the body fhould be
burcd under bis (lht Judge's) direliions. Which

directions

F
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lhre‘tmm he had given the da? before, and that Pr,
Bowen had then come to tell him the directions
had been complied with.”

JOHN RANDALL, fon of Benjamin Raadall.
¢¢ | carried the Beaver-kar from my father to Judge
Dorrance, and afked the Judge for a receipt or an
order. The Judge faid that Dr, Bowen owed
him nothing, and it was very impolite to draw upon
a man who owed him nothing, He told me I might
leave the hat with him or carry it home again as I
~ pleafed.”

WILLIAM MOWRY, a Member of the
Houfe of Reprefentatives. ¢ On the 7th of May,
1800, being at the elcltion, at Newport, 1 went with
Dr. Comitock to the Governor to confuit hin con-
cerning the election of certain officers. The Gov-
ernor fpoke of the Court of Common Pleas for the
County of Providence, to which Judge Dorrance
then belonged. He wifbed Richard Jackion, jun,
might be put in Mr. Dorrance’s room. He told
~me that Mr. Dorrance had fold the dead body of a
firanger who hung himfelf, and had received a Bea-
ver=hat therefor, and rciatr:d particularly fome of
the circumlitances abourit, I afterward told Judygze
Dorrance that unlefs he cleared up tae Governor’s
imputation agamnlt him, 1 fhould vote againlt him,
Judge Durram.e: was however not ﬂppuftcl at that
time ; but was leﬁ: out, the laft year,”

.Q_, By Dgf_mdau:’-: Counfel. Did Governor Fen.
ner tell you this ftery pleafantly ¢

| A. ¢ Yes, pleafantly) d

EPHRAIM BOWEN, jun. ¢ On or about the
53-31 day of April laft, I went to the reflidence of
Goverpor
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Governor Fenner to deliver a letter from Col. Ros
bert Rogers, «f Newport, which had come under
eover to Mr. John L. Clark, foliciting the influesce
of the Governur, in Mir. Rogers® favoor, at the enfue
ing eleétion, for the appointment of Clerk of the
Court of Common Pleas for the county of Newport.
Mr, Clark being in Bofton 2t the time the ietter was
delivered at his houle, Mrs Clark fent it ro me, with
the cover, to be by me delivered to the Governor,
As the letter to the Governor was open for Mr,
Clark’s perufal, T read it and then fealed it, as re-
queited by Mr. Rogers, betore I delivered it, le
ccniaineda Certficate from Judge Taber, highly
in favour of Mr, Rogers, and was given 1n confe-
quence of an a€t cf government requiring cercificates
from the Cutet Jult ces, coacerning the condudt of
the Clerks tn their offices.

I found the Governor in the road paffing his
heufs, wiere I aelivered the levier., He opened and
read it, ¢na then invited me into his houfe. After
we were leated, the Governor again read the leiter,
aid faid, * In wga:d Lo this aﬁur of Mr. Rogers, [
can s jorm you. canaia'y, what { think of it. I think
Mr Nogers wiki be bpat.  They bave carried matiers
50 £igh in that County, that I am sure be will not suc-
cecd 5 though I coujess that RGGERs 15 a gaad officer 3
and in falt that PE KHAaM is not fit for it. I fbail not
anterfere in the ele@ion in that, or amy of toe otber
CounticS, exceft our own. Bul in tbis county 1 am de-
termaned ro interfere in fome cajes. - There are iw. oF
three damned whords=biras whem Iiniend to pay for
qoe ili - treatment I bave ramwdfrm them, and a-
mungfl the reft, your Judge Dorramce. 1 aiked the
Goveinor winat judge borrance had doae to deferve
being rurned out ? He repliced, ¢ Dorrance bas frea-
ted me feandalously on Jeveraloccifions,particuiariy one
day 18 twe down- Cennehy Befides” (laid the Governe

or)
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or) << Idm’t think a man fit for an office who will be
Zuilty of fuch a [candalous breack of confidence as
Dorrance bas been, in felling the m w's body who f'mng-
bimjelf, toyour brother Pardon, for a Peaver hat.”—
I obferved, that this was an affair that I never heard
of, as perha_ps 1t took place during myv abfence from
home. The Governor replied, Wby I kelieve ir
- did ; and will tell you hoto it was., Sometime in the
Winler before laft, a firanger who appeared to be in~
fane, banged bimself in Scituate. W hin be was found
and about being buried, there was a young man prefent
who lived with Dr. Dyer or Dr. Bowen, and »y bis
condult the people fufpeiied that meafures would be ta-
ken to carry away the body. Accordingly Ibay watched
the grave the firft night ; and nobody appearing, they
omitted it on the fecond, when fome pirjons went cnd
200k the bedy away. 1t caufed cosfiderable alarm in
Scituate ; and on exquiry, it was difcovered 1hat toe
body was brought to town. On whick, Fobn Harris,
and two other of the members of the Tﬂwn-ﬁ‘m#ri! of
Scituate, came to me and informed me of the circum-
Jfance, and a fked my advice bow to preceed, faying
they had difcovered where the body lay, and weonld a&
according to my advice. [ advifed them to accemodate
the affarr, if any body appeared to indemnify thew for
the expences the town of Scituate bad been at, and [a=
2isfy them fur their own trousle and expsmce ; whick
‘after fome conver[ation, they confented to do. They
went fo fusge Dorrance, where your brother Pardon
swet them, and agrf:ed to pay all the expences ; and the
dody was confided to Judge Dirrance, iy agresment, to
be a’:::m!r buried : fﬁﬁﬁ'ﬂd of dong weick, e fold the |
body t0 yeur broiher for a B:aver bat ; ana'hr bad the
impadence to wear the bat in 1own- mm‘mg, woen be
prefided as Moderator.”

I obferved, that I did not think the felling 2 man’s
dead bad}' for difiection was o criminasl an at as
fome
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fome peopleconfideredic : For that in all countries;
the bodies of malefattors were trequently configned
to the Surgeons for diffeCtion, that thereby the liv-
ing might be benefited. But, if Judge Dorrance had
. been guilty of a breach of confidence, | thought him
much to blame. The Governor obferved, that John
Beverly bappened to be in Randali’s fhop when Ran-
dall’s boy returned from carrying the hat: That
Randall had ordered the boy not to deliver the hat
without a receipt ; and the boy informed his father
that Judge Dorrance refufed to give a receipt, and
faid it was a delicate matter, and he did not like to
give one; That Beverly, on hearing the report of
the boy, faid, *“ G-—d! I know very well what the
hat was given to Judge Dorrance-for. It was for the
dead man’s body which he fold to Dr. Bowen,”’—
Afier much other converfation impertinent to the
prefent cafe, I leftthe Governor with a full determi=
pation of enquiring into the truth of his information.
Accordingly, having met Judge Dorrance next day;
I related to him what had been told mie,and afked him
if it wastrue, He replied, it was a {candalous falf=
hood which the Governor nad before reported.  He
then related the circumitances exaltly in fubftance
as he has fince publifhed ; 2nd obicrved, at the {amé
time, that 1f the Governor did not defift from telling
fuch ifcandalous lies about him, he would fate the
whole tranfaétion in the newfpapers, I gave full cre=
dit to the information 1 received trom Judge Dor-
rance ; but confidering that Dr. Bowen would, if res
guelted, ftate the whole facts, it Judge Dorrance had
not been correét, and relying on nis ver.city, [ 1n-
formed him of the report, and asked him if there
was any foundationn truch for it ¢ He replied, that
the report was totally falle and grounales as re.

fpected the fale ot the body of the dead man, and
hig giving a Beaver-hat for it to Judge Dorrance,
He then gave me a full detail of ibe bulinels; as

- puolithed
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publifhed in his certificate. Thus believing pofi-

tively that th= Governor’s information was ground-
lefs, and wifhiag to prevent any altercation in the
newlpapers, which I was perfuaded would take
place, unlefs the Governor modified his ftory, I went
again to the Governor, a few days after, and ftated
to him the iaformation I kad reccived both from Mre
Dorrance and Dr. Bowen, and concluded by telling
him that he had been deceived. The Governor re«
plied,  What I bave told you 1s TRuk. My infor=
mation 1S CORREGT ; and the man bas never been bu-
ried, but is now above ground. I am informed they
are taking depofitions in the bufine/s. I intend totake
depofitions alfo 3 and the people mufi judge.” After
fome other convérfation, we came into town togech=
er, and | faid nothing more to him on the fubject
till; I thiok it was, the Monday preceding elec
tion 3 when I faw him near the Poft-Office, and in=
formed him that Judge Dorraace intenaed to pub-
lith a piece on the fubje, I had previou(ly inform=
ed the judge; that the Governor adhered to his firit
declaration. I had alfo enquired of him whether he
had any knowledge of the bones ot tae dead man be-
ing above ground, He informed me; that he had
no knowledge of it In a converfation 1 afterwards
had with Dr; Pardon Bowen, [ difcovered, to my fa=
tisfaction, that the man’s bunes were then above
ground. And at the time I intormed the Governor
that Judge Derrance intended to publilh his piece,
1 alfo informed him, that what he had laid refpecting

the bones being above ground I thougnt was cor=
R&.n

- WILLIAM HUNTER. * At the elettion in
May, 1800, while I was a member of the General
Aflembly, the Governor and I Jodged at the fame
houic. The Governor and I, with feveral others,
in an evening, had fome converfation refpecting the
L choice
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¢hoice of certain officers to be made at that ele®ion. i
the courfe of which converfation, the Governor ex-
prefled a wifb thar Gen, William Allen might be
elefted to the office ot Sheriff of the county of
Providence. We thea difcourfed on the ele@ionof
Judge Dorrance to the office of Juftice of the Caurt
of Common Pleas for the. fame county. ! obfery=
ed, that Judge Dorrance was a refpeétable literary
‘character, for whom I entertained a highly favoura-
ble opinion, and had no cbjection to his being eleét-
ed to that office. The Governor infinuated fome
objections. He finally related the ftory of the dead
body that was brought from Scituate to Provideace,
and left to the care of Judge Dorrance to be decent-
ly buried; that through the connivance and collu.
fion of Judge Dorrance,Dr. Pardon Bowen had been
permirced to take the body for diffe€iion ; and thate
Judge Dorrance had received a Beaver-hat as a com-
penfation for that breach of confidence. For the
particulars of this ftory, the Governor referred to a
paper which he faird he had carried with bim to the
election, but, at the time of our converfation, he faid,
was 12 the hands of one of the members of the Aflem-
bly; This paper he faid contained the whele itory
of the body’s being dug up and diffetted, and of
Judge Dorrance’s receiving the Beaver-hat for his
connivance. He faid the fame paper alfo contained
an account of Judge Dorrance’s conduét in the af-
fair of the law=fuit between Atwood and Beverly.

¢¢ This ftory related by the Governor made a deep
im preflion on my mind, and excited in me fenfations
wnfavourable towards Judge Dorrance. 1immedi=
atcly apphed to feveral members of the General
£fiembly for further informatien on the fubject. I
hawever found that the chara&ter of Dr. Pardon
Buwen was oppofed to the ftory, and of cousfe 1 did
R0t believe 18",

2.

-
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B. By Plaintiff’s Counfel. Did the Governor relate
the ftory to you as a matter of faft, or asa repore
~ from John Beverly ?

A. Herelated it as a matter of fa®t, and referred
to John Beverly as a witnefs. He urged the ftory
with great apparent zezl againft Judge Dorrance,
and exprefled himfelf as if he believed it. The
converfation on the fubjet lafted half or three quar-
ters of an hour ; in the courfe of which the Govse
¢rnor repeated the matter of che Beaver-hat feveral
times, and fometimes he mentioned Beverly as a wite
nefs, and fometimes he relaced the faét without any
authority whatever. |

DAVID SAYLES, ¢ In May, 1800, [ was a
member of the General Affembly, and weat to the
General Eletion, at Newport, on board the {ame
Packet with Governor Fenner. In the courle of the
pallage, there was {ome converiation between the
Governor and me relative to the eletion of Richard
Jackfon, jun. in the place of Judge Dorrance. The
Governor was urgent tor the elcction of Mr. Jack-
fon.  He told me he had a paper in his pocket
containing a ftatement very black againlt Jobhn
Dorrance. I requefted him to let me fee the paper,
which he accordingly did. I read the firft partof
the paper which contained a ftory charging Judge
Dorrance with having contracted with fome gentie”
mea of Scituate to bury the dead body of 2 man who
had hanged himfelf ; but inftead of performiag his
contract, had fold che body to Dr. Fardoa Bowen
for a Beaver-hat. According to the ftory related in
this paper, the body was not buried at all, but
delivered by Judge Dorrance directly to Dr. Bows
en. The ftory further comprehended a long detai}
concerning the delivery of the hat to Judge Dorrance
By Randail’s fon, and of theboy’s demanding a ree

ceIpt
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cﬂp; for the hat which Judge Dorrance refufed
to give. Previoufly to my bcgmnmg to read,
the Governor began to relate the fiory verbally,
which he continued during {ome part of the time
while I was reading. I read the paper only as far as
pertained to the ftory of the dead man and Beaver-
hat, but this was only a part of what was written on
the paper. The Governor obferved, that the re-
mainder of the writing pertained to the {tory of the
law-{uit tetween Atwood and Beverly, and was not
concerning the dead man; and as I was then for
fome reafon or other in fome hafte (I do not recol.

lect on *_what accuuﬂt) I handed the paper to the
Guvtrnur. :

Q By the Governor.  Was there any name fign.
ed to (ke paper which I then ﬂlewed you?

A. 1 believe there was not. _‘
( Tie Governor here produced a copy of the
agrecment made between Dr. Bowéh and the Sciiu.

e-c mei, concerning the burial of the body, and
asktd the wurtfa it that was the paper?

The witnefs after examining it, declared that it
| was not, |

Q. By Defendant’s Cnmy'e! For what reafons de
you know that the paper here fhewn by the Go-
vetoor is not the one which he fhewed you nn
bnard the packet ¢

A, Thisis a fmall piece of paper written only on
one fide, and that was a whole fheet of paper nearly
covered with writing on every fide, This pager is
writien by a different hand trom that by which the
other paper was wntten. 1t does pot contain the
Mo td 17D i TTALREN ’ .t ! Y ﬁurr -
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ftory which I read in that paper ; neither did that
paper contain the agreement written on this,

[The Governor now declared, pofitively, that the
paper now {hewn to the witnels was the only one he
ever had in his poffeffion, which in any manner con-
eerned the dead man.]

Q. By the Governor. Is it not poflible, Colonel
Sayles, that you may be muftaken about this paper’s
being different from the other 2

A. I am clear, pofitive, and abfolutely certzin
that it is not the {ame paper.

(The Governor, after paufing a few moments, faid,
¢ Ave, I think I can now fhew you the very fame
paper which I fhewed you on board the Packet,”—
He then produced a paper which was a duplicate of
the fame copy he had been then fhewing the witnefs,
and afked him whether that was the paper he alluded
tn !—The witnels denied this paper alfo with the
fame pofitive certainty.) '

9. By Plaintiff's Counsel, What appeared to be
the reafon of the Governor’s hewing you that paper
en board the Packet, at the time he mentioned the
ftory of the dead man tw you?

A. The Governor told me that the paper con-
tained the whole ftory of felling the dead body for
a Beaver-hat, and gave me the paper, by reafon, he
faid, that it was more particular in the account than
what he could then recollect to relate verbally.

2. By Ditto. lHad you ever heard the ftory be-
fore‘the Governor told it you on boeard the Packer ?

J‘
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4. Neo. I never before heard any thing of fel-
ling the body for a hat. While I was in Providence,
on my way to eleftion, 1 was told, in the ftreer, thac
Judge L*orrance was to be oppoicd, but did not un-
derftand on what account.

9. By Ditte. Do vou fay, onyour oath, that the
paper which Goverror Fenner fhewed you contained
a ftory of Judge Dorrance’s felling that dead body
for a Beaver-hat ? .

A. 1 have already faid, that I read fuch a ftory
written on the paper which the Governor thewed me.
I again repear, on my oath, that the paper contained
a ftory purporunrg that Judge Dorrance fold the
dead body of a man who hung huniclf, to Dr. Bow-
o, for a Becaver-hat.—I am pofitively certain in my
recolleCtion, and 1t .s impofliole that I can be mif-
taken, '

£. By Ditte.  In what part of your paffage from
Providence io Newpors, did Governor Fenncr fhew
you that paper 3

A. Tt was a little before we arrived atNewport. '
We had then performed confideraoly more than half
the paflage. . ‘

Dr. EZEKIEL COMSTOCK. ¢inMay, 1800,
1 went to Newport, as a Reprefentative in the Gen-
eral Aflembly, at the eletion. While on my paf-
fage, in the Packer, 1 was 1n company witnh Gov,.
Fenner, Gen. Barton and others. A converfation
was introduced, between Gen. Barton and me, con.
cerning the compention which was expected between
Judge Dorrance and Rienard Jackfon, jun. for the
office of Jultice of the Court of Common Pleas,—~
Gen, Barton told me he was confident that Judge

Dorrance
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Dorrance would loofe his ele&ion, becaufe ¢ ke
Beaver-bat bufiness was a Devil of a fircke at bim.”
I afked him for an explanation of  his meaning, and
he told me that Governor Fenner had a writing
which contained the whole ftory from beginning to
end. He referred me to the Governor for a peru-
fal of the paper ; upon which I immediately applied
to the Guvtrnur, and afked him to let me fee it.—
The manner in which Gen. Barton had communi=-
cated the fubject of the paper was fo uaintelligible
to me, that I fcarcely knew how to defcribe to the
Governor the paper which [ withed to (ee. The
Governor however feon underftood my meaning,
and told me be had a paper in his poflcfion which
contained a full ftatement of the whole tran{action
1€lative to the felling of the dead body for a Beaver-
hat ; and after fearching fome time among his papers
in order to find it, he told me that he recollecied to
have ient it to one of the members of the General Al-
fembly, and delired me to call upon him at his lofdg..
ings, after we fhould arrive at Newport, and he would
fhew me the paper. 1dd not however pay much
regard to the ftory, and never called on the Governor
for the paper.”

L. By Plaintiff’s Counsel, - Did Governor Fenner
tell you, that toe paper which he referred to contain-

ed the ttory or felling the body for a Beaver-hat 2

A. 1 underftood him that the *whole [tory was
particularly detailed in that writing.

$®. 1In what part of your paflzage did you have
this converfation with the Governor ?

4. Soon after weleft the wharfats Previdence.

e
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®, Wad you ever heard this ftory before the
Governor related it to you at that time ¢

ol 2N,

Dr. BENJAMIN DYER. This witeefs was
called {olely tor the purpofe of meeting the teftimo-
ny of Dr. Anthony, and teftified as foliows :—

¢« The day before yeflerday, feveral gentlemen
were in my ftore, and I was afked by one of them why
1 did not attend at this Court 2 I anfwered, that I
was not concerned in the conteft between Judge
Dorrance and Governor Fenner, and did not {up=
pofe that my name would be made ufe of in the cafe §
but that I was always angry wich mylelf far paymng
fix or feven dollars to the Scitvate men to fettle the
bufinefs, in behalf of the young men who lived with
me; and that I now grudged it to them more than
ever, becaufe 1 #bem thought they were the Town=
Counclil, or a committee appointed by the town, but
had fince learnc that they were a felf-created coms=
mittee : That they were 1 thoughe much 1o blame
for interfering in the bufinefs, as cthe diffection of
dead podies was certainly an advantage to the living;
and that tnerc never was a more proper fubject than
the one 1n queltion. We talked fome upon the {ub-
ject of Surgeon’s diffecting boaies for the purpofe of
gain in feliing the borws. 1 obferved that many
people entertained that idea, and that it was very er=
roncous, AS an inftance of this I menuoned the cn=
ly {udjeét in which 1 was ever concerned in dufeét.
fhg, Woich was perhaps ten or twelve years fince 3
the Dunes of which were fold to one of the young
men who atiended, tor about fous or five dollars;
which went 1n part to defray the hude expences
which haé accrueq, fuch as liquors, &c.”

CALEE



- CALEB ORMSBEE teftified, that he was applied
6 to make the coffin for the dead man,and was direét.
ed to make it fix feet loag; and one and a half foor
“wide ¢ That he direfted his youag man to make the
coffic, who afrerward informed the witnels thar he
had made it accordingly : Thuat it was made of good
wide boards ; was wider at ane end than the other;
and was worth (hore than two dollars.

Di. JOSEPH MASON. ¢ Sometinie in the
winter of 1799, a young man who was a pupil of
Dr. Pardon Bowen; called on me, and informed me
that a ttranger had hanged himiclf in Scituate, and
‘that it was propofed to procure the body for diffec.
tion ; and alfo alked my opinion as to the manner
in which it was beft to proceed. 1 ddvifed him co
fend fome one to obferve where they buried the bo.
“dy; and afterward to go out in the night and take
‘it up and bring icinto town. One of the Students,
¥ think Mr. George W. Hoppin, went out on the
bufinefs, 2nd on his return; the fecond evening fol=
Jowing was fixed for going after the body. I had a-
greed to be one of the party, but was prevented by

a profeflional call, On the nexc day it was reported,
that fume men in Scituate were 1n town in {earch of
the body. On the following day, I was informed
“thatr Dr. Pardon Bowen was before a2 Gourt of Jufti-
ces, at Hoyle’s tavern; for examination refpecting
the [Eranger’s body, Concelviog myfelf to be more
implicaied in the tranfactien thaa Dr. Bowen, I im<
mediately went to Hoyle's 5 where; in[‘teacj of find=
ing the Do&or before 4 Coure, 1 fouad bim in the
‘tompany of feveral men from Seicuate, who called
‘themnfelves ¢ a commitiee of agents” from that town,
"ang with whom Di. Bowen bad jult made an agree.
ment; wherein he was to pay taem farty dollars by
way uf comproqufe. I tried every metnod 1o my
power 1o prevent the Doctor irem ¢oslenting to ang
M - duca
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fuch agreement, and obferved to him, that it apa
peared to me that the town of Scituate had nothing
to do with the bufinefs; and if it bad, that thofe
s en had fhewn no authority from the town : That
1 believed thev had come with the fole view of pick-
ing money out of our pockers for their own private
vie. But Dr. Bowen; unwilling to have any further
controverly with them, cenverfed with me alone,
and peifuaded me to give up my objeltions.” He
finifhed the agreement with them which wasg in wri.
ting, and paid them the money ; whereupon the
Scitvate men figned the writing, which containe.
ed the exat engagement as I wunderflood it,
of the parties refpeétively, and is I believe the
fame paper produced here in Court. Among
the figners of the agreement, I recotled; John
Harrisy; Gideon Auftio, I think a Samuel W ilbour,
-and aman who called himfelf a member of the Town-
Council of Seituate, and made his mark for his fig-
nature to rhe paper. As it was late before tais buli.
_nefs was finithed, I went immediately to Mr. Caleb
Ormifbee, whoie fhop was in Capt. Godirey’s ftore,
and requefted him to make a coffin, to be ready at
11 o’clock thar night. He faid a coffin could not
be made in that time. I then told him to make a
bux, [ix feet and an half long and large in propor-
t:on, anc leave it at the out-fide of the thep. 1 alfo
lefvmy fleigh and harpefs, with directions where
thole, with the box, might be feund. Abouta week
after this, I went te the houfe of IMir. George Sugden,
i Weftminfter-Street, and fournd the body prepared
for aufle€bion, I there met feveral of the gentiemen
who were to afiift in the operaiions ; but the teody
was in {v irozen & Itate that it was impolfibie to do
‘any thing with it at that time ; and that was the
¢ply ume that 1 ever faw the body,”

ﬁ.‘ .
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Q. By Plaintiff’s Counsel, Was Judge Dorrance
knowing to any part of the tranfaction in taking up
the body and diffeting 1t¢

A. 1donot knnw that he had any knowledge of
any part of the tranfaction, in any manner whatever,
either directiy or indirecily.

Dr. HARDING HARRIS, < In the winter of
1799, at 2 fmall diftance from town. I met Dr.
Dapiel Kmght. He told me he was coming inte
town to fee {nme parts of the dead man diff:cted.—
‘He faid the body was then at Sugden’s, and invited
me to aitend the operation with him. He obferved
thzt he thought they had a right to diffeét the body
as they had bought it of the mob that came from
Scituate, at luch an extravagant price ; and that
the whole expence of the bulinefs had beea as much
as fixty or feventy dollars. Herelated to me the
particulars refpecting the burial of the body by the
ftudents ; and I underitood him that Dr Bowen
Was not prefent at the burial, and that he did not
lee any part of the proceedings. He told me the
body was then pa tly diffected by the youny
gentlemen themiclves, and that Dr, Pardon Bowen
had been prevailed on to inftruct them in a further
operation, which Mr. Knight confidered as a pe-
litenefsin the Doctor,and for which he was thankful.”

- The Witneffes being thus far examined, the
- Couanfel for the Plainuff conunued the argumenis
in fupport of the a.ttmn againit the Dcfendand’s
Pu‘-:a in Bar,

Iz was obferved, that as the Defendant
had by his Plea confefled che fpeaking ol the
words, and had underragen to juttify hunlelf in
{pcaking them, it only remained, to be deters
miaed, firlt, what mugh: be a {futhciear juls

ticatien
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tification of the words f ken ; fecondly, whether
the Defendant had rnade out that juftification fop
himfelf, The Defendant, in his Plea in juftification,
had no where averred the*!wwds to have been frue;
bu: he had merely fet forth a hiftory of circumftan-
cés, apparently for the purpofe of ﬂlewmg, that from
the exiftence of thefe cicumftances, he, at the time
the words were fpoken, bad reason to believe them
to be true. The infufficiency of the Plea, {uppo-
fing it to be fubftanniated, could be incontrovertibly
thewn from an abundance of auchorities at hand,—
The Plaintiff however, for certain reasons, had not
demurred to the Plea, and the jury were of courfe to
ery its fufficiency.  Inthe firlt place it was contend-
cd that the moft material fafts ftated in the Plea
were by no means proved. The Plea had ftated
that the Plhinuft had agreed 1o and with the other
contrailing parties, that be would take the body in bi
care 1o be decently buried inProvidence, under bis care,
superintendance and direffion. The evidence had
proved no iuch agreement on the part of the Plains
t.ff. Notbing more had been proved, than that che
Plaintiff had consented to give diredlions merely refs
*prcung the manner of the burial ; and in this, he
fad pot affumed the leaft _degree of refponfibility.—
"T'he body was never in his cultody or coatroul ; nor

did he ever promuie any care or fup::rm::ndcncc:, In
any part of the bufinefs.

1t was faid, that the, Counfel for the Defendant
liad goue bcyurd their Plea, which did not pretend
to the truth of the wyrds, and bad laboured to in.
duce in the Jury a prelumption of their being true:
L har this was more thab tie Defendant himielf could
have cxpetled theJury to prefume; or he would have
veniured to affert in his plea thit the words were
trué. . The Pleairielf, aliowing it to be pmvcd
cetild omy avall the Drfundaat In mitigation of da-
'nagt:s 5
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mages ; but by the arguments of his Counfel, in fup-
pore of that Plea, he was to be entirely |ﬂ{hﬁed and
the a&ien barred : But fo far from having demon<
firared the words to be true, or fhewing a pro-
bability ot their being troe, the Defendant had nei-
ther pleaded or proved a fad, that could excite a
prefumption worthy of refatation. The extreme
‘abfurdity of fuppofing Dr. Bowen to have fo unne.
ceffarily bribed Judge Dorrance to a mean and ican-
dalous connivance in the'difpofal of a dead bedy, of
which he had not the care, and of which heknew not
the exiftence but bv hearfay, was a miferable fubter-
fuge that could be ‘adopted only by a Defeadaat, 1n
thE utmoft extremity of a defperate caufe. It was
an unpardonable outrage upon common fenfe, to
fuppofe that thofe Surgeons, while they actually had
the dead body in their uﬁel’ﬁun, and at their entire
difpofal, fheuld thmk of purchaling 1t of Judge
Dorrance, who had not the leaft poffible controul o-
ver it, or even any politive knowledge of its exiftence,
Still more contemptibly ridiculous would it be, to
{uppofe, that Judge Dorrance ever made himfelf ref-
ponlidle for that body’s remaining it 1ts grave undif-
turbed, That would have been an engagement of
an immenfe refponfibility, and of which he could
not have acquitted himfeif, but by perpetually and
eternally watching the grave. liowever, there
could not be reafonably any <ontrover{y relpecting
the nature of Judge Dorrance’s epgagement in chat
bufinefs, The agreement, containing every
part and parcel of his undertaking was in wri-
ung, ﬁgm:d oy the Scituate gentlemen themielves,
and there in Court ready to {peak for icfeif.  la re-
gard to Dr. Bowen, if the exalted opinton which fo-
‘ciety uniformly acknowledged of his charaéter, his
taleats and prudence, was infufficient to refcue nis
underltanding from the pitiful imputation of ftupid-
ly purchaﬁng a'dcad pody which he already h;d in
1s
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his own poffeflion, and at his own difpoial, of Judge
Dorrance, who had no pretenfions to authority for
telling it, the clear, pofitive and abfolute declarations
of his teltimony mult be acknowledged fufficient,
unlefs the Doétor had unfortunately further tranfaét- -
ed a fhill more unthrifty fpeculation, in being guilty
of wilful and deliberase perjury ; and that without
the leaft pefiible temptation.

The Defendant had fet forth in his Plea that he
had circulated the flander in confequence of his ha-
ving previoufly heard it from others.  John Beverly
had told him that he gzefed the Beaver-hat was given
for the dead body. 7Thofe circumftances [ht‘:’P]am-
tiff’s Counfel contended afforded the Defendant no
juflification whatever, It was a principle laid down
in all the books, that every man fhall be anfwerable
for his qwn flander. They cited 6 Bac. Abr. 239,
Efp. N. P. 517, Cro. Eliz. 400, 7 Term Rep. 19,
Bul. N. P. 10, 12 Rep. 133, the Barl of Northamp-
ton’s cale.

It was faid, that the attempt of the Defendant tp
thift the flander from husielf upon John Beveriv,was
an expedient as futile as it was mean and unmeanly.
At the time Beverly communicated to him his furmj.
ies refpecting the Beaver-hatr, he alfo explainea to
sum ihe circemitances and reafons why he had guef-

ied that the hat was given for the dead body. Thc
Governor had no more reafon to believe the words.
0 be true than Beverly had ; becaule he was equal-
ly with Beverly peflefied uE the grounds of their
eruth. 1t was in evidence that the Governor and
Heverly had been fo mucn at variance, that tbey had
not ipcken to cach other tor neariy a year aad a
“falf ; yer ac the time of propagating this flauder,
they had become ftravgely recoanciled. The Gov.
was new courung an latimacy wich Beverly, to wham

ne
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hie had not before, for a long time, deigned to {peak,
Beverly was now continually at the Governor’s houfe,
publicly repeating the flander, in the Goveroor’s pre~
fence, in unqualificd terms, to every perfon who
came in ; provided they came from a diftant part of
the State. The Governor was as conftantly {fecond-
1ng Bevesly’s imputations, and encouraging and en~
forcing a belief of their truth; although Beverly
had fecretly explained to him the inconfiftency and
improbability attending the fuppofition of the fa&t.
W hile the flander remained only in the mouth ef
Beverly,and in the circle of his acquaintance, it could
never have found credit, or be followed by any 1njury,
and would have remained wholly unworthy the notice
of the Plainuff ; but as foon as the Goveraor feized
with avidity upon the fcandalous ftory, and contri-
buced his own name to give it autheaticity, 1t then
began originally to be flander, and the charaéter of
Judge Dotrance then began to be affected. Till
then, the ftory was buta bafe coin refufed Ly every
one to whom it was offered, but the moment it re-
ceived the Governor’s ftamp, it obtaised credit and
currency. The Governor was acquainted with Be-
~verly as well as with the maaner in which he had
fabricated the ftory, and could not poifibly believe
the ftory to be true. But, admitting that the Go-
vernor could poifibly have believed the (tory, {till he
“was lictie more juftifable 1n reporting it in the man~
ner he did. He did not with a delicate and manly
regard to the reputation of his neighbour, an officer
who held an important commiflion in the governe
shent, endeavor tp acquire fatistatory informa-
tion vpon the idie and maligous report; though
?e might, at any time, in the courle of a
¢w minutes, have abundantly obraiazd if,—==
He did oot with a re€icude of heart, as a chief ma-
giltrate in whom an honett indignation was kindled
by a belief of fcandalous conduct in Judge Dorrance,
tequire of him an explanation, reprove him to s
face,
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face, publiciy declare him to his neighboui’s an ob-
Ject cf cenfure, cropenly denounce hitn in the Le-
giflature as an offender unworhy of pub]ir: troft,—
lofiead of reforting to 'fuch direet and honourablé
meafures, he fecretly and equivocally, in a diftant
part of the State, inlinuvated the miﬁ:r-al_;ﬂg fallfehood
to fuch particular members of the General Affem-
bly as he conceived he wou'd be able to perfuadets
give credit to it ; and all for the exprefs purpofe of
indirectly preventing Judge Dorrance’s re-clection.
Thefe infinuations he always made without difclo-
fing the grounds of his own intormations. The
name of John Beverly was never mentioned, byt
as a witnefs whofe teftimony would corroborate the
Governaor’s own affertions. There was no evi=
‘dence of the Governor’s reporting the ftory to the
people of Providence, to whom the character of
Judge Dorrance, the Governor and John Beverly
were well known, till more than a year afrer he had
reported it in other parts of the State where Bever-
‘ly was totally unknown, From a conlideration of
‘all thele circomitances, 1t was proper to pronouace
the words complained of not only a falfehood in
every fenie of the term, burt allo acrucl and ma-
dicious falichood. . "

On the queftion, whether the words were a&ionaa
#/¢ it was admitted that the words did not impute
a fel ny to the Plaiaufi; a crime for which he weuld
be hable to fuffer death, But it was contended that
digging up a aead body for the purpofe of diliection
was an 1ndictabie misdemeanor, tur which tne offcns
der might be liable to nue and imprilonment. To
eftablifh this, an authority 1n point was produced:
2 Term, Rep. 733, Lynn’s Cale. The cale was as
foilows : ¢ 1 he Deteccant having been cunviceed
on an indictment charging nim with ectering on a
_€ertain burying-ground; und taking a cothn out of
the
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the earth, from which he took a dead body, and cats
ried it away for the purpofe of dilfe&ting it.” =< Gara
row, who was to fupport this motion” (in arreft of
._ﬁﬂgmmt) ¢ mentioned that perhaps the circum-
ftance, ftated in this indiftment, of the Defendant’s
“taking the body for rhe purpofe of diffeition, might
differ this from the common cafe of taking up dead
“bodies for any indecent exhibitions.”—<¢ The Court
faid that commion decency required that the prac-
tice fhould be put a ftop to. . That the offence was
‘cognizable in acriminal court, as being highly in-
decent, and contra konos sores ; at the bare idea alone
of which nature revoleed. That the purpole of tak-
ing up the body for diflection did not make it lefs
‘an indi&table offen¢e. And that as it had been
. the regular praftice of the O/d Bailey in modern
‘umes to try charges of this nature, many of which
‘bad induced punithment, the circumitance of no
writ of error having been brought to reverfe any of
thefe judgments, wasa [trong proof of the univerfal
‘opinton of the profeffion upon this fubject. They
thereforg refuled even to graat a rule to [hew caufe,
Jeft that' alone thould coavey to the public 2nidea
that they entertained a doube refpelting the crime
alledged. But inalmuch as this Defendant mighe
have committed the crisme merely from ignoeraace,
no perlon having been before punifhed in this Courc
fot cthis offence, they only fined him five marks,”

This decifion of the Court of King’s Bench, as it
‘was conceived, placed the matter beydd all doube
or hefitation, thatthe words fpoken againft Judge
Dorrance were actionable; as Mr. Robbins nad ad-
mutted that Judge Dorrance’s connivance had made
him as much a principal as if hehad dug the b.dy
~ up with his own hands. 1t was obferved, that what

had been argued by the Countel on the¢ osher has
relative to the body’s being unprotected by law, oy

N realon
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feafon of the fuicide, was frivolous, and of no fub.
ftance whatever. It was umneceffary to enquire
whether the laws of England refpeéting the burial
of the body of a {fuicide in the highway with a {take
driven through it, applied at prefent in this State.
It was fufficient to obkferve that it was not done e-
ven in Englaad, except 1ncafe of a felo de /e 3 and
it was not :n evidence that the man who hanged hime
felf at Scirvate was declared by the Jury of Inqueft
to be 2 felo defe; but it was faid that the Inqueft
had pronounced his violence upen himfelf to have
been the confequence of infanity.

| Here the Hon. Judge Martin interrupted the
Counfel, and defired him to repeat his laft obferva-
tion in clear Enghth, that the Court might under-
ftand the meaning of felo de fe. Upcn which the
Couniel gave the Court the neceflary explanatior,
“which they acknowledged they at laft underftood. ]

It was further faid, that to dig up the body of a
fuicide whom the law had depotited in the highway;,
for a particular purpefe, would be a greater offence
than the digging up of an ordinary perfon ; becaufe
in that cale, the body would be tetally in the cufto-
dy of the law, and entirely at its dilpofal. The
law, by fuch parucular appropriation, would make
the body a particular pragerty of government, And
to tzke fuch a body away would be to directly ob-
ftruét the operation ot afentance of the law.

In regard te fpecial damages; it was contended
that they were fufficiently fet out and proved : yet,
as the woids were plainly thewn to be attionable in
themlelves, it was entirely unneceflary for the Plain=
tiff to prove fpecial damage. Actionable words
implied malice ; and the law prefumed them to be
{ailuwed iy camage o the perfon flandered.  The

J ury
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Jury were therefore to confider the wickednefs of
the difpofition which induced the flander, the enore
mity of the offence in fociety, and the injury which
the Plaintiff ‘had fultained ; and would aflifs the
Defendant in damages commenf{urate with the crime
and the injury.

- In the clofe of the firft iffue, Mr. Howell argued
for the Defendant, He recapitulated and enforced
the arguments cf Mr. Robbins in the opcaing, ex-
cepting where Mr. Robbins argued that Judge Dor-
rance, by his connmvance, at the taking up of the
body, had made himfelfa principal in the tranfac=
tion. Mr. Howell, in his comments on the cale of
the indi€tment for taking up a dead body, cited by
the Plaintiff’s Counfel, in 2 Term, Rep, 733, con-
tended that Judge Dorrance in permitting other peo-
ple to take up the body, did not make himfelfeven
an acceffary to the offence. He fad that the indict-
ment mentioned in 2 Term, Rep. 733, was for
breaking and digging up the ground, and not for
taking up and diffe@ting the body., He produced
another authority from Term Reports, 1n order to
fhew that breaking yp the ground was what coaftitu-
ted the offence. (As this was a new authoricy 1ntro-
duced in the clofe of tae iflue, the Counfel for the
Plaigtiff rofe to explain it on their part, But Mr.
Howell infited upon not being interrupted, and
thereupon the Chiet Juftice commanded them to 2g
filent. However on the motion being ftrenuoully
repeated, the Court confented that the Plunuff
fhould be heard on that poiat atter Mr., Howell had
ended his argument.)

Mr. Howell obferved, that his age, experience,
and the character he was ambiuious of fupportiog
as a lawyer, were motives {ufficient to prevent him
from alicrring any matter to be law, which was con-

Lt trary
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trary to his epinion, His fincenity therefore could
not be fcrupled when he pronounced the words com=
pla.med of not to be ationable. He oblerved that
in the prefent Cafe, the grounds of complaint were
trifing: That Judge Dorrance had teceived no

. damage of confequence : That the Governor had

faid no more cf him than what any freeman had a
right to fay of his neighbors : That fuch princi-
ples as the Plaintiff contended for were tping the
tongues of the citizens. It was a pecuhiar privilege
which every free American citizen pofiefled, to fay
what he pleafed of his fellow-citizens : The free.
dom of fpeech was a blefling to the community which
the prefent patriotic admaniftration of the United
States had long contended for, and had obtained,
The official character of the Defendant ought to be
confidered by the Jury, and eught to fhield him 3=~
gawnft light prefomptions, and even from aecoun=
tability tor petty faults. He was the firft magil,
trate of the Stare, in whofe charaéter the _Iur]r tm:m-
feives had an intereft, which they were not uvnder
obligation, in the difcharge of their duty to facri-
fice. He was the fervant of the people ; and every
irceman had an intereft 1n the character of bis fer-
vant, which he could not be compelled to furrender.
L be charalter of the chief magiltrate ought to be
icrutinized with awe and with caution. His cha.
raéter was the hallowed repefitory of the honour,
the dignity and fovereignty of the Staie ; and the
inierelts and happineis of the State ex:fted in the
refpect and obedience due to the dignity and au-
thority of hisothce.  His office ought to fecure him
from the indigmey of revengeful attacks upon his
private reputation, uader the cover of groundlefs
tawiutts, The Jury cught to be careful how they
triled with a fuperior power, ““ What ? 7 (faid Mr,
Hewell) ¢ What | fay ¢ Areyvou to fet up your
firlt magltraie, hike a Shrove~Tuelday-Cock, to ba
& thrown
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thrown at, and knocked down for fpert > Heob.
ferved, that the Governor had defcended from 2
long and illuftrious line of anceftors, who had thro’
all ages ftood above the common claffes of people.
He pofiefled an independent fortune which alfo de-
{cended from thofe illuftrious anceftors. He pof-
fefled an unparalleled brilliancy of talents, and a
boundlefs capacioufnels of mind, adorned with e-
very valuable accomplithment, and replete with the
moral and focial virtues. His heart flowed with the
milk of human kindnefs, and was an exhauftlefs
treafure of holv charity everlaftingly Aowing for the
improvement and- benefit of all mankind. Above
all, he had, till the commencement of this wanton
lawfuit of Judge Dorrance, uniformly enjoyed the
eonfidence and affcéions of his fellow.citizens, Till
now he had been the idol of the State, and there had
never been any onc fo hardy aste publicly impeach
his character. ¢ Who is he who has now done it ¢
Is he one of the Browns, the Angels, the Arnolds,
the Olneys, or one of tlw: refpectable defcendants of
good old Roger Williams ? No:He isaftrangerin
the land ; a growth of a foreign fail, of whom the
State does not contain the bonesof a fingle illuftrie
ous anceftor ; a man whofe fortune is of his owa
making. The private merits and public fervices
of his Excellency Governor Fenner, can be equal-
led only by his magpanimity and generofity. To
my fhame, 1 contefs, that I have myfelf entertained
illiberal prejudices againft him; bus the great and
good man has been indulgenc to my errors, and has
forgiven me.”

- Mr. Howell concluded his defence by infifting
to the jury that the Plantiff had no caufe of acuion ¢
But if the Jury fhould think otherwife, be was confi-
dent chey would not find for the Plaintiff more than
nominal damages,

On
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®n the fecond Iffue the Counfel for the Plaintlf
fpoke in the opening. The matter in iffue was fim-
ply whether the Defendant did publith a {canda-
lous libel purporting that the Plaintifffold the dead
body for a Beaver.hat. It was admitted by both
parties, that if it {hould be proved that the Defen-
dant actually fhewed to any perlon a paper contain-
ing fuch a ftory, 1t would be a fuificient publication
to charge the Defendant with the flander,

In order to prove the publication of the libel by
the Defendant, the Plaintiff’s Counfel called the
attention ef the Jury to the tetimonv of Col, Da-
vid Sayles, Dr. Ezekiel Comftock and William Hun-
ter, Efg. who had given their teftimony in the for.
mer ifflue. It was obferved that the teftimony of
Col. Sayles was fo pofitive, fo corre@ and confift«
ent, that it abfolutely eftablithed the faét, beyond a
poflibility of being otherwife, unlefs the Witnefs was
wilfully perjured. The only queftion that remained
was, whether Col. Sayles was perjured or not. To
fecure that gentleman from {o foul an imputation,
there was 1n addition to his unblemifhed charaéter,
and the many inftances of public confidence with
which he had been honoured, the teftimony of Dr.
Comftock ard Mr. Hunter which ftrongly corrooo-
rated that of hisown.

The Defendant, in the courfe of the Defence,
called feveral Witaeflcs for the purpefe of doing a-
way the teltimony of the Planuft’s witnelfes ; the
firlt of whom was JUDGE HARRIS, who tedifed
as follows, ¢ I was on board the Packet with the
Governor in the paflage to Eletion in May, 1800,
1 applicd to the Governor for the written agreement
concerning the dead body. He handed it to me; aud
@clirce mie to hand it to him again,”

JUDGE
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JUDGE MARTIN. ¢ Three or four weeks a.
g0, I had oftzn heard that Governor Fenner had
{hewn a paper on board the packer, and that Col,
Sayles had faid fo. 1 afked Sayles if it was true,—
He fad yes. He faid the writing was on a whols
gheet of paper, and related the (tory as particularly as
he did yefterday in this trial. He faid be did noc
hear the ftory firft on board the Packet, but a triend
of Richara Jackfon, jun. had told it to him be-
fore he went on board.”

SYLVANUS MARTIN. 2. By tde Governor,

Had not vou fome converfation with one David
Sayles refpeting this Cafe ¢

A. “Yes. In June laft I was at Cumberland
and faw David Sayles at his houfe. He informed me
that he faw a paper on board the Packert relating the
ftory of the Beaver.hat. He {aid that the flory had
gone out of his mind, till Judge Dorrance’s publia
cation in tne newipaper revived it. He told me
the paper did not appear to be in the Governor’s
~hand wriung.”

DAVID SAYLES, called by the Plaintiff.
‘¢ Sometime ago I faw Judee Martin, and he in.
vited me into his, houfe. He condufted me into
a private room,zand atter fhutnng the door, cau-
voned me fricthy 10t 'to miénkign chat he had fpoken
tome. He thea ‘enquired of me particularly what
I knew of, the difpute between the Governor and
Judge Dorrance. I was not peifeétly fatisfied with
the inanner in which Judge Martin conducted his
enquiries, and did not therefare teél much difpofed
to be communicative to him. I however recollect to
have told him that 2 gentlemaa had meationed ‘te
m¢ tat {fomeching black had turned up.

“Sylvamus
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~wS8ylvaaus Martin came to my houfe one'Monday
morning. 1 was in the field at work ; and when {
came_home, at noon, I found him there again. Afe
ter he went away, my wife and mother-in-iaw infor-
med me of Mr. Martin’s being there in the morn.
ing, and that he had queftioned them particularly
whether they bad ever heard me tell what I knew res
lative to the controverfy berween the Governor and
Judge Dorrance, but they gave him bu little infor<
mation about it. Whaile Mr. Martin was prefent
with me, he toid me that the old matter had broken
-out again, and the Governor was going that day te
compliment Judge Dorrance with a writ., He then
 alked me what I knew about the paper, and faid

thac he fuppofed 1 thould be fummoned as a witnefs
in the Cafe. I told him I had feen -a paper, re-
fpecting the Beaver=har, in the Governor’s hands ;
and that it did aot appear to have been in the Gov-
ernor’s hand writing. He obferved, that I could of
courfe know nothing about the matter. He foon af
ter went away.”

CALEB HARRIS, called by the Plaintiff. <€ At
the Election 1n May, 1800, I flept in the fame room
with Col. Sayles. One night, after we were a.
bed, Sayles began to taik ot Judge Dorrance, and
highly dilapproved of his, conduét. He fiaid that
Governor Fenner, on their paflage to Eleftien, had
fhewn him a paper which contained an account of
Judge Dorrance’s felling a diad body for a Beaver~
hat. He defcribed the paper to mein mueh the
fame words which he has uvled in his teftimony bere:
The ftery was entirely new to me; and Dext morning
1 acquainted Judge Dorrance with what Sayles bad
told me. The judge laid he had never heard of it
before,” :

- CHARLES DYER. * Sometime after the ap-
pearance of judge Lorrance’s publication, Benja-
min
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iin Randall was at our ftore, when there happened
to be fome converfation refpecting the Beaver-hat
and dead body. I afked him fome thing about his
tétimony which he had given in adepofition taken
by the Governor concerning the bufinefs. Randall
‘laid they had lied about him like the Devil : That
be knew not what the hat was given for; and chat
he was forry for what he bad faid, and would
not have faid it, had he forefeen the confequences.
H: faid that Dr. Bowen {poke to him for the hat
‘before the man hung himfeltf.”

HENRY ALLEN. ¢ Bepjamin Randall was
at our fhop to buy fome oil of vitriol. I heard him
fay thac the Beaver.hat was f{poken for before the
‘man hung himfelf.”

9. By Defmdint's Counjel. Did Randall pay
you for the vitriolat that time ? ;

A Yes.

NEHEMIAH KNIGHT, called by the Govern-
or. * | know nothing pérraining toj the iffue be-
~ fore the Jury. 1 received a letter from Governor
Fenner, and went to his houfe. He fhewed me a
‘writing containing as much as twenty pages 10 folio,
relating to the cdie of Atwood and Smich. I with-
ed to fee the orher gentleme= concerned in the bu-
finefs, and the Govérnor withed it alflo, Tne gen®
tlemen were accordingly fent for, and attended. A
great deal was faid about a fertlement in thaccale ;
and the Governor feemed defirous to promote a fct=
tlement in an ealy way to the parties.y The
Governor faid the reafon why he requefted Beverly
to commit the hiftory of the cafe te wrining, was
that the matter might be made known to the particse
The Governor was of opinon that if Smuhi could

O not
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rot be relieved by the General Aﬁ'ﬂnbl'f, the judgtf.
of the Court would have the debtto pay, Judge
Dorrance faid that he never had any thing to co in
the bufinefs. I was Sheriff at that time and had the
fervice of the execution ; but had no interccurfe
wuth Judge Dorrance about it, and do not know of
his ever paying any of the expences of the procefs.
The Governor appcared fatisfied with Judge Dors
rance’s conduct.’

JASON NEWELL, called by the Governot.
¢ ] know George W. Heppin, 1 faw him feveral
davs ago. He faid he was a witnefs in this cafe ;
and wifhed that Govérnor Fenner might be fo beat=
en in the caufe that he could not be able to look’
bis own fon in the face. 1| afked him if he was not
willing that juftice fhould be done. He anfwered,
that he wilhed by all means to have juftice done.

TOHN CARPENTER, called by the Governor.
¢ ] hearc Charles Dyer fay, that Beajamin Randail
told him that the Beaver-hat was fpcken for before
the man hung himielf, he ooferved alfo that Ran-
dall was intoxicated wien he told hiny fo.”

9. By Plaintiff’s Counfel. 'Was you prelent when
Randali gave a dcpuﬁtmn refpeting this bulinefs,
for the Goveinor’s ufe, about the time of the com-
menceinent of his action agaiult Judge Derrance

A4 1 was,
9. Was Randall fober at that tume ¢
4. We took his firft depofition in an evening,

He was then very miuch 1o hquor; and the next
@ay we took his depolition over again, :

2.
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he T'rial, to fay things that were mot true ; and
which Randaﬁ fa!d he fhould not conafent to do.
Troth ; he faid, was the beft policy.™ i

THOMAS BROWN teftified that he was pre-
fent, and heard the fame converfation with Randali
in the {ame manner as Capt. Steere had t:[hﬁeﬂ.

BENJAMIN RANDALL, called by the Go-
vernor, teftified that the Goveraor never {poke go

him in private oz the [ubjedd of tbg Beguer- égﬁ.

RESOLVED SMITH, called by the Governer,
teftified that he never beard the Governor dirett Ran-
dall to m:sftate any faét in Court. v 3

WILLIAM PECKHAM, called by the Gover-
por, teitified that he fir gave Randall’s dcpaﬁtlnn _
to the Guv:mur, while he was at Newpun.

JOEL METCALF teftified, that i in the time of
the yellow feverin 1800, he was a mcmhtr of the

Town-Gouncil, and was prefeat whea the Governor

had a dispute wu:h Judge Dorrance, whu was then
Prehdent ok the Town.Council,

CALEB HARRIS re-examined. % Did Gov<
ernor Fenner cver tell you the reafon “why he em-
ployed Beverly to write that ftory of the law.fuit

"He told me that he defired Beve:ly to com-
mit thc ftery to writing, that he might fee if Beverly
cuuld tell the ﬂ:m;jr twice ahke.

The Counfel for the Defendant agreed, that as
the evidence of the Defendant’s publlﬂung the libel
depended ¢ hiﬁﬂj on the ttﬂ:lmunjr of Col, Sayles, the
Jwsy would not bc wariantable in convicting hl'Tll of

e
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the flander on fuch flight grounds ; becaufe ie wag
probable that in fuch a length of time his memory
had failed him. The integrity ofCol, Savles however
was,in unlimited terms, by them acknowledged to be
immoveable. They infifted that th ecopy of the agrees .
ment was the paper which he had miftaken for the
l.ih:ir : 2

The Plaintiff’s Counfel, in the clofe of the Cafe,
confidently contended that there never was a cafe
wore fully and fubftantially proved. Col. Savles,
aman whofe veracity or candour had never beea
queftioned, bad been fo ftubbornly pofitive in his tef.
timony, that no ingenuity or management could e-
vade it. Itwas in vain for the Defendant to trifie
with his awn charafter, by endeavoring te paim
vpon the Jury a prefumption that the copy of the a-
greement was attually the paper which he fhewed
to Cal. Sayles. It was in vain to perplex the intelli=
gence of common {enfe by cavilling fitmiles of the
infufficiency of Sayles’ memory. Col. Sayies, the
very next day afier he faw and read the paper on
board the Packet, gave the fame accouart of it to
Judge Caleb Harris, which ne had given n Court,
Svivanus Marun had alfo heard the witacls relate
the ftory in the fame manner. Dr. Comftock and
Mr. Hunter had both heard the Governor refer to a
paper of the fame defcription, The queition waol-
- Iy refted on this point: Either thofe witnefies
were guiliy of deliberate perjury, or the Governar
was ically guilty of the flander,

On Saturday evening, being the fourth day of
the trial, the arguments were clofed, and the caufe
cemmitted (0 the Jury. Abeut nine o’clock, tue
fame evening, the Jury retired 1o their room.  They
there continued, without agreeing on a verdi&, il
atter the Court was opened, on Mondzy morming,
when they appeared and informed the Court thag

tucre
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there was no probability of their ever agreeing, and
requefted the Court to reeeive the papers of the
Cafe. The Chief Juftice refufed to take the papers,
He was of opinion that their difagreement was ow-
ing chicfly to an unaccommodating party fpirie,

which they ought to endeavour to quality and fub-
due. Hetold them it was their duty to agree, and
that they ought not to relinquifh the caufe till they
were all ot one opinion. He l:hf:r:upun ordered
them to retire a fecond time, which they accnrdmg..
ly did ; and between three and four o’clock, inthe
af:f:rnnﬂn, they returned, and informed the court
that they had figned a verdi&.—The Clerk took the
verdict and read it aload, 1o the tollowing weords

¢ Ve find for the Defendant bis coff.” The Counicl

for the Defendant upon this, regusited tae Clerk to
enter the Verdit according to the two iffues joine

ed, and afked the Piaintiff’s Council if they had any
{Jb_]ﬂ&l;ﬂﬂ- They were anfwered that the verdid
was expefted te be entered a.ccurdmg to the iutcn-
tons of the Jury. Whereupon ieveral of the Jus
ry declared to the Court that they did not mean to
find the trtuh of the Detendant’s Plea in Bar to the
eight firfl Ceunts, and that they believed the Plaintiff
cmuiely innacent of the facts charged againft him ja
the Plea ; and the foreman told :hr.: Court that the
whole Jury had uniformly exprefled the fame opia-

ion, While this converfation was palling, Mr.
Howell had drawn the form of a verdict to be enter-
ed, which was nearly in thefe words: ©“ We find
for the Defendant upon the firft iffue : We alfo find
for tne Dctendant on the fecond iffue, with coft.’*
This form was read and objected to. The Court
ordered the Clerk to enter the verdict. The Clerk
was at a los to know how to make the entry,
and applied 10 the Court for their Inftruétions,
Tne Chuef” Jullice 1aid, ¢ Write the verdift in the
EuTRiOn md#.wr. I dow't know what elfe 4o fay.” A~

b - nother
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wother controver(v arofe berween the Counfel, whén
one of the Plaintiff’s Counfel defired the Jury to in-
form the Courc what they meant to find in their vers
dict. Upon this the Chief Juftice faid, < The Ju.
R1ERs aught to be difmiffed, becaufe they’ve been fout up
fo long, and baven’t bad no refrefbment, that they can’t
Sland it any longer,  The Court can do about the werd:fi,
I guefs ” Several of the Jurors did not feem wil-
Iing that the Jury fhould leave the ftand till the ver-
dict was decided. One¢ of them vehemently begged
the attention of the Courr, and told them that he
meant to find for the Defendant only on the eighe
lalt counts, and offered to give his reafons for fign-
ing the verdict in the manner he did. But the
Court did not look towards the Juror, or take any
notice of what he faid ;—and the Juror therefore de«
fited, The Court were again applied to, to decide
the form of entering the verdict. The Chief Jultice
faid, < Write it as you commonly do. I dom't know
wha! elfe 1o fay, n’t I> Tae Clerk finally entered
the verdi@ 1o his minute book, in the words of the
Jury, viz: ¢ We find for the Defendant his coft.”
He then ipoke to the Tury 10 thefe words = ¢ Gen-
slemen of the Fury, beirken to your verdift as the Court
bave recorded it. We find for the Defendant his
solt. s this your verdiét, Gentlemen.”  Upen which,
Narthaniel Bailev, one of the Jury, immzdiately rofc
and faid, ¢ No, it is not my opiaien, I meant to
#ind for the Defendant only o the laft eight counts,” -
Hec was proceeding further, while two or three other
arors rofe to make toeir explanations. The Chief
}hﬁic:,‘ however, ftopped the Jurors, and told them
they were dilmificd, and muft immediately retire,—
WNathaniel Bailey (till urgently defired to be heard ;
bat the Court told him the Jury were regularly dif-
charged ot the caufe ; and that it was improper for
she Court to hear them any more upon the fubject,

The
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The Counfel for the Plaintiff now afked the Coiirt

if the verdi&t was; at all events, to be recorded in ¢
preient fituation. The Chief Juftice faid, « Wby
the Juwiers bas all fighed it, and 1can’t fee wby tifn’t
;gnpd verdifl. 1 am wiiling tho’, and 1 Juppofe the
Court is, to bear all that can be Jaid upon it. HWhat
ba' ye got to fay for yourfelf, My. Burrill?” Mr.
Burrill told the Court that kis duty to his client re-
quired him to objed& to the verdi@’s been recorded
beczufe the Jury, when folemnly called on, accord-
ing 1o the practice and ufage of that Court, had des
clared it not to be their verdi ; and that it wasotiale
lv againft their fentiments and intentionss That the
_]ur fecmed to have figned the verdict for the very
purpofe of defeating its operation, by an explanation
in Court ; and they had been pci-mutr:d to explain
thtmfr:iv:s fufficiently; in his opinion, teo deltroy the.
wverdict.

(Here the Chiet Juftice interfupted and faid,
e Speak louder, Mr. Burrill, I'm fune deat, an'ts In&
DPve not beard allts been faid, The Cosrs bas a ﬂmzﬂ
t0 do that’s right. For mattay 0 that we’ll bear you
patiently, Mr. Barrill and Mr. Grm:r too. Proceed
Mr. Burrill”)

on this; the Counfel fer the Dcfcndam moved
the (“.: urt that the Plaintiff’s Counfel be not permit-
‘ted to fay any thing further upon the fubjeét of the
verdict., They faid the verdict was already record=
ed in the minute book, the Jury were dilcharged, and
the Plainuff was therefore entirely foreciofed in any
objections he could nake to the verdict’s ftanding
on record as it then was, The Plaintiff’s Counfel in-
fifted on being heard, and offered to produce, in
addition to the pracuce of the Court, {fundry authori=
‘ties from the books, to fhew the abfolute necellity of
the verdict’s being annulled.

apu The
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mitted to prove things done in the prefence; and
under the view of the Court ufelf,

The Court, after whifpering fome time; declared
that the paper thould not at that time be entered on
file, but that they would take it, and cafry it a few
days in their pockets, and at a convenient time
would fay whether they would formaily receive its
The Chief Juftice faid ¢ The Court bas mo obje:-
tion to let the paper be. I'll put the paper 1n my pock-
et till the Court can fee about it. We'll beawr what
she parties ba’to fay before the Court’s done. Ye ba’nt
#0 objelion I’ [psje to that, im ye ? H:b "

The Cowr refufed to appmnt a parncﬁlar day for
hearing the motion for their receiving the paper ;
but they faid they would /ee about it before the rifing
of the Court. They kept the paper 1n their pnﬂ'r:fﬁun
till the tenth day after the return of the verdict,when -
the motion was again brought before them, and they
confented to hear the arguments upon the fubjeét.
The Derendant’s Counfel again repeated their objecs
tions to the paper’s being received, or the Plaintiff’s
being fuffered to fay any thing more againft the
prepriety of the verdicz. The Plainuff’s Counfel
infifted, that the verdict was incomplete, irregular, -
and ablolutely void of itfelf. They faidit had al-
ways been the uniform practice, and cuftom of the
Court, not to confider a verdict complete till the
Jury had folemnly acknowledged it as their verdiet,
and perfifted in 1t, after the Cuurt had entered it in
their minute-book. ‘That {uch was the practice alfo
in the Supreme Court, where feveral verdicts were
recollected 1o have been fet afide, by reafon of fome
of the Jurors diffenting to it after the Court had
entered it on the minute-book : That in the prefent
Cale, feveral of the Jury had folemnly declared
;hc:r utier diflent to l;m:: verdict, before they were

dutmified
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The following Certificates are prefented by twa
of the Jurors, for the purpnﬁ: of publicly vindi<

dlcatmg their own conduct in ﬁgnmg the vers
du:t -

¢ T certify that I was a Jurorin the Cafe of Joha
Dorrsnce; Efq. againft Arthur Fenper, Efg. tried at
zhe December Term of the Court of Common Pleas
in the County of Providence, 1801—That I with the
other Jurors figned the verdiét in the following words,
¢« We find for the Defendant his coft :”— My fign.
ing this verdict was owing wholly to the abfilute ne.
c:ﬂitjr at the time of my being immediately relieved
from the caufe. I was fhut up with the Jury from
g o’clock on Saturday evening till late in the fore-
ncon of the Monday following, more then fix and
thirty hours, fuffering under fevere lndlfpuﬁmn_
frem the pleurify, before we ‘could be permitted to
appear before Court. 'We had not then agreed on a
verdi@, and the Court infifted on our retiring again,
for the purpofe of agrecing, if poffible.  We again
vetired, and continued in debating upen the verdict,
mylelt ;efuﬁng to fign it in favour of the Dcfﬂndaﬂt
on the eight firft Counts of the Deciaration, tll fome
uime in the afternoon of the fame day, when my in-
“difpofition was. cncrcaﬁng upon me, I was compell-
ed, at all events, to get rid of the bufinefs. I there-
fore fet my namc to the verdi®, with an intention
of explaining myfelf to the Court when the verdict
fhould be delivered to them ; and with an expetta-
sion of being able to prevent its operation as a ver-
aict by expreling my diffent to it, after it theuld be
read by the Clerk, and offered to the Jury on the
ftand tor their acknowledgment. But when the
Cleik read the verdiél before the Court, and afked
the Jury sf it was their verd:& 2 The Court ordered
the jury to immediately retire from the fand. [
at the fame time declared my diffent to the verdict,

bu;
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In THE Case
ARTHUR FENNER vs. JOHN DORRANCE,
- Commenced at the December Term of the
Court of Common Pleas, in the Coun=
ty of Providence, A. D. 1801,

- AT e

HIS was an Action of the Cafe commenced

by His Excellency Arthur Fenner, Efg. a-
gawnft John Dorrance, Efq. charging the Defendant
with having publifhed a falfe and fcandalous Libel
againft the Plaintiff, which appeared in the Provi-
dence Journal of the 6th of May, 1801. The Cafe
was called for tnal in the wmorning of the 21t day of
the Term, and the 13th day of Januvary, 1802. The
fame Jurors were firlt cailed who were onigi inally cal-
ed in the former cafe between the fame parties, as
ftated in the former part of this publication. Naa-
man Aldrich, Nathan Dyer, James Hamman and
Charles an were challenged by the Governor, on
the fame grounds that they were challengﬂd formere
ly ; and the lame arguments upon the challenges were |
1epeated, excepting the obfervations of Mr. Dors
rance’s Counlel, that the fame grounds for the chal-
lenge of Mr. Hammon did nog exift as in the former
Cale ; becaufe, as he was challenged for having
made up a previous judgment of the Cale, the fame
objection muft certainly now equally applied to all
the Jurors whobeard the other Cefe, and were to
decide in this alfo, for the fame principles, facts and
evidences were to be inveftigated in this as in the o-
ther Cafe, The Court however difmiffed thefe four

Jurors in the fanie manner as before, At the tung
e
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MIN Jenks was chen called, by the Gowernor, as 4
witnefs, He teftified that he lived in the village of
Pawtucket, in the neighberhood of Mr. Nicholas.
That he (the witnels) was one day, in the fore part
of laft May, at the timeof the firft appearance of
Judge Dorrance’s publication, ata place called Poer’s
Cerner, in company with Abraham Wilkinfon, Timo=
thy Greenme, Samuel Slater and George Nicholas, the
Juror : That fome of the company ralked about Judge
Dorranee’s publication ;—fome of them commend=
ed it, and fome condemned it: That during this
converlation, Mr. Nicholas ftood by, faid nothing;
and feemed to také but little notice of what was
faid. At laft Nicholas left the company, and juft
as he was going, one Ba’gltty happened to be paf-
fing by. Nicholas fpoke to Bagley, but fo low,
and in fuch amanner, that the witnefs could net dif-
tinguilb a word that be fuid 5 but it feemed to imply.
as much as to lay  The publication was good enough
jor Governer Fenner ; or fomething to that purport.”
The Juror was afked if he recollected the converfa=
tion ipoken of by Jenks, He however declared
himielf abfolutely certain that no fuch converfation
ever happened ; and that Jenks was totally mifta-
ken (to ipeak the beft of it) in every thing he had:
faid. He faid that Benjamin Jenks was a mas
with whom he did not affociate, and fuch a conver-
fation could not have happened without his remem=
bering i,

TIMOTHY GREENE was called by Mr. Dors
rance; and after taking his affirmation, was asked
if he remembered aoy fuch converfation in the pre-
fence of Jenks. He faid that he did not ; and faid
he was perfeétly fure that no fuch converfaticn ever
happened in his (the witnefs’) prefence. ke ad.
ded that Jenks was a perfon unitormly fhunned oy
all the people whom be mentioned to have convers
ted with at Poes’s Corner. ABRAHAM
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heard Kim mutter unintelligible words, which feem=
ed to be unfavourable to the Gnvﬂnar. -Mr. Dor-
rance’s Counfcl obferved,that they hardly kaew what
arguments. to ule agamﬂ: the mortion for removing
the Juror, There were fuch grofs and glaring marks -
of falfhood in what Benjamin Jenks had (worn to, -
and fuch palpable grounds for prefumption, that he -
was procured as a {uitable man to {wear Nicholas off
the Jury, thac they conceived the Court would not
hefitate in pronouncing it wholly unworthy of their
regard. Some time late 1n the evening, the Court
~ were called on for their decifi ion, They whifpered .
an unufual lcngth of time, till at 1alt the Chief Juf-.
tice fpoke aloud, in nearly the following wards : —.
«« Wby Ido'na wlmt tosay, w't I, [t seems there’s mot
quite evidence enough againft the JURIER fo dismifs bim,
but some of the Court seems to think so for all, Toey
seems fo want bim off.  For my part, I'm for bwmg it
right, ldo’ na what's beft to do.  Governor Fenner, 1
would afk you if any of the W vikinson’ s,bas ever affront. |
¢d you,or the like o’ that ; inparticular theone bere 2"
Hereupon the Governor rofc up, aad talked to the
Court 1n a voice fo low that it could aot be diftince-
ly heard by the audience. Part of his information
however amounted to fay that Oziel Wilkinfon, fa-
ther of the young gentleman prelent, was generally
oppofed to him (the Governor) in public matters.—
Upon this Judge Martia queltioned the Juror, whe-
ther he was not fometimes employed by fome of the
‘Wllkmfuus or fome of their connections.. The Ju-
ror anfwered, that he had fometimes worked in the
bufinefs of his trade, a houle-carpeater, for Samuci
Slater : That Samuel Slater marr:ed the daughter.of
Uziel Wilkinfon, who was father to. the young man
prefent 1n Court,  He was then afked if he had ever
coaverled with Mr. Slater refpecting the cafe on
trial. He anfwered that he had not; and that he
di¢ not recollect to have cver heard Mr. Slater, of
' . | any
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any of the Wilkinfon ’s fpeak concerning the cafe.—
The Court at length came to a decifien.. After
whifpering a few minutes, the Chief Juftice faid,
% Aye, the Conrt :&mh it beft tbar the Jua LER come '.

fl’

. By the vuluntary. information nf George Barton,
a Juror, to the Caurt, that he had exprefled an opin-
ion of the merits 'of the cafe to certain perfons, he
was alfo exeufed by the Court. Two Jurors were
thereupon wanting to fupply the places of Nicholas
and Burton,when the Clerk calied Nachaniel Bailey,
who had officiated as Juror in the former cafe, and
was now again prefeat. Bur the Chief Jultice faid,
“ Tbe Court bas excused all the drawn JuRriers, and
Idon't sec as bow Mr, Bailey can be one now.” A
Yenire was now ordered, out of which the Jury was’
filled up, Whereupon the Counlfel for Mr. Dor-
rance ebferved, that from the manner in which the’
Jury had been empaanelled, and the [enuments which
the Jurors were known to entertain, there was nohope
of a fair crial,  They therefore SUBMITTED
]UDGEMENT and appﬂalcd '

At the ‘opening of this Trial, Judge Dorrance
read oefore the Court a propofal to fubmic this
Caule together with the former one, ¢ to the deter.
 mination of either three of the Fudges of the Supreme
Couri of the State of Maffachufetts or ConneiZicut, or
1o any three good men living aut of this State ;” Mr.
Dorrance agreeing at the fame time to pay all the

Colts up to the time of the propofal.—T'o this pro-
~ potal the Governor utterly refufed o acceed. Mr.
Howell obferved that he fhould not endeavor to
prevent an amicable accommodation between the
parties ; but for Governor Fenner to remove the
caufe from among his affectionate confticucacs o
the State of Maffachufects or Connetticar, m:ui:il, i
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